Phoenix Journal #111



By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Table Of Contents

INTRODUCTION	1
INTRODUCTION OF GEORGE H. SEARES	
by George H. Seares Oct. 14, 1994	1
WHY HAITI AND WHAT ABOUT HAITI?	4
IS IT A SIN TO TELL A LIE?	6
America, WEARE IN TROUBLE	8
CHAPTER 1	
MISCELLANEOUS NEWS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS	9
REQUEST FROM RONN JACKSON	9
WE'RE BACK! BUT WHICH WAY IS UP? ONLY TIME WILL TELL	9
THE NEWS DESK by Rick Martin 9/9/94	10
RANDY WEAVER & RUBY RIDGE	10
HELICOPTER HARASSMENT	10
WOMEN SPIES	11
DEFENSE CONTRACTORS	11
COUNCIL ON FOREIGN RELATIONS	11
INTERNATIONAL MONETARY FUND	12
POPULATION CONFERENCE	12
FAMILY	13
COMPUTER VIRUSES	
PLO & THE POPE	
GORILLAS	
FOREIGN PRISONERS	14
WHITE BUFFALO	16
NUCLEAR FEUD	17
PAKISTAN	
UNITED FARM WORKERS	
ILLEGALS	
RUSSIA'S GRAIN	18
SMALLEST VIDEO	
PRODUCTIVITY DECLINE	
JAPANESE UNEMPLOYMENT	
NEW CAPITAL OFFENSES	
JAPANESE PLEDGE	
MALAYSIA TELLS JAPAN	
JAPAN & WORLD ECONOMY	
NUCLEAR TECHNOLOGY	
GERMAN PARTY	
HOW MANY MORE PEOPLE?	
CHINA & LABOR	
CHINA & POLLUTION	21

CHINESE INFLATION	22
CHRYSLER'S SLAVE LABOR	22
CHINESE PRISONERS	22
AUSTRALIAN DROUGHT	22
AUSTRALIAN REPUBLIC	23
ZINC STUDY	23
THE NEWS DESK by Ed Cleary 9/10/94	23
PREACHER CLINTON	
CAIRO, THE VATICAN AND THE U.N.	24
MURDERERS MOVE INTO POSITION	
ANOTHER DC FARCE	24
AND SPEAKING OF LAWYERS	25
JEWS CONDEMN ADL by Rick Martin 9/15/94	25
CAIRO'S U.N. POPULATION CONFERENCE	
GREENSPAN CLASH	27
INTERSTATE BANKING	
U.S. LEADS IN WORLD MARKETS	
WORLD BANK	
ALBERTO FUJIMORI [A10]	
BRAZIL & DART	
U.N. DEBT	29
BRANCH DAVIDIANS	29
INTELLIGENCE BUDGET	30
DISCOVERY	30
GADHAFI	30
WOULD YOU BELIEVE	31
TOBACCO FARMERS	31
SOME FACTS ABOUT THE BATF	32
CHAPTER 2	34
KEEP YOUR EYES OPEN AS EARTH CHANGES ACCELERATE	34
by Soltec 9/18/94	34
CHAPTER 3	40
VOTESCAM:	
HOW YOUR VOTES ARE STOLEN	40
12/9/93 #1 HATONN	
LOU EPTON SHOW 10-21-93	
GUEST: JIM COLLIER, Author of VOTESCAM	40
REVIEW	40
CHAPTER 4	
WHICH WAY IS UP?	
REFLECTIONS ON THE PLAY	46
CHAPTER 5	
A FREE AND INDEPENDENT PRESS IS LONG DEAD by John Swinton	
CHAPTER 6	
NATIVE AMERICANS' VALUES THREATENED	

BY IMPOSED WESTERN "MORALITY"	. 50
PAIN AND HYPOCRISY	. 50
CHAPTER 7	. 53
DELTA FORCE BEING TURNED ON UNSUSPECTING AMERICANS?	. 53
CHAPTER 8	
TWINKLE, TWINKLE, LITTLE STAR by Kali 9/5/94	
CHAPTER 9	
HAWAII SOVEREIGNTY UPDATE AND DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE	. 59
THE ROLE OF ISLE ROYALTY (View by two authors)	
WEREN'T DEMOCRATIC by Thurston Twigg-Smith	
SUSTAINED CULTURE by Kaha'i Topolinski	
CHAPTER 10	
APFN'S NEW "FAXX-BOXX" FEATURE	
CHAPTER 11	
MILITIA OF MONTANA INTEL REPORT	
CHAPTER 12	
THE PIPELINE by Michael Maholy	
CHAPTER 13	
THE CONSTITUTION PARTY	
CHAPTER 14	
DISREGARD OF OUR NATIONAL INTEREST	
CHAPTER 15	
HAITI AND HIGH CRIMES	
CHAPTER 16	
THE MISSING 13th AMENDMENT	
CHAPTER 17	
FREEWAY UNIVERSITY NEWS REPORT	
CHAPTER 18	
MORE ON NEARBY SOVIET ARMAMENTS	
CHAPTER 19	
FEMA POLICE SHOULDER PATCH	. /3
FEMA, FED POLICE PATCHES ARE RED FLAGS	. 74
Nora's Research Corner Extra!	
UNITED STATES POLICE:	
FEDERAL EMERGENCY	
MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA) PATCH	
POLICE: FEDERAL PROTECTIVE	
SERVICE PATCH	
CHAPTER 20	
WHAT IS A REPUBLIC?	
CHAPTER 21	
MORE ON THE REFOUNDING AMENDMENT by Don Fotheringham	
CHAPTER 22	
KOSHER FOOD TAX by Edward Tear	
THEY DON'T WANTTO TALK ABOUT IT	. 84

CHRISTIAN CRITICS ARE SMEARED	85
CHAPTER 23	
THE BILL OF RIGHTS	86
CHAPTER 24	87
RENO TARGETS THOSE WHO MAY	
FIGHT AGAINST TOTALITARIANISM	87
Exclusive to the SPOTLIGHT by Mike Blair	87
RUSSIAN VISIT	87
Index	

INTRODUCTION

INTRODUCTION OF GEORGE H. SEARES by George H. Seares Oct. 14, 1994

I am going to take this opportunity as the "new kid on the block" to introduce myself. I am an investigative journalist who has been around that block a few times and wish to "park" where I feel I can offer the most valuable service.

The first thing asked of me by my new co-workers is, "Why did you choose this little bit of paper which is always under attack?"

Because, frankly, primarily and foremost is the fact that in every major publication I have served, my work was so edited and distorted as to render it all but sterile. To get anything into print without tampering I have had to go THROUGH other journalists—even to SPOTLIGHT **and yet I** feel every journalist has a responsibility and right to stand squarely for his own material and presentations.

I am complimented and yet a bit annoyed that I am labeled "just another Hatonn"! No, I am NOT "just another Hatonn" and I would prefer that you understand that as well. In fact, my first assignment is to lessen focus on that personality in order to stop distractions. Ekkers are, as far as I can discern, in no way actively attached to this paper, either. My location will be, at home base, Las Vegas, Nevada. I will also spend a great bit of time in California where I can familiarize myself with that which has come prior to my input.

Is my above label an alias? It certainly IS for I have been bashed and battered to within a quarterinch of my life and part of my family has been "taken-out". I do not intend to allow distractions to distort the input of my work or that of the other contributors to this paper. This paper, I am promised, is going to refocus on content as a more integrated part of the journalistic subject matter pertinent to ongoing activities.

I have no authority to speak on that which I am not fully privy in instructions but I am told that "Hatonn" will continue his work more in the direction of Spiritual matters, or rather, that which is Spiritually and Cosmically more pertinent to our ongoing enlightenment. Mine is journalistic investigations, corrections of bad press, close communications with such as Ronn Jackson when he is ready to more fully contribute to both the paper and ongoing activities related to such as national interests. My understanding is that there will be a major shifting away from topics of controversial nature such as aliens, E.T.s, UFOs and the like coming from parties who are, in themselves, controversial. I am continually amazed in my own experience that content of information can be all but ignored in the controversies of source and resource. I can, however, assure you that there are "these" things and "beings" and that I have had the privilege of meeting with some of them. I have also met with members of the Committee(s) covered in past information offered—and even members of Majestic 12 (MJ-12) which seems to give more controversy, even, than the other manipulative political puppet-master committees.

I realize, in reading catch-up information, that some of you will not like this new acquisition. I can assure you, however, that you will LOSE nothing—but rather, free up your old familiar friends to turn their attention to what they consider far more lasting and urgently important information. There is very little difference in "politics" and "religion" but massive differences in "political religion" and "spiritual truth". In fact, I have found that there is a major error in calling something "political science", religious science, "spiritual science" and the lack of "science" in each. I intend, further, to not become involved in political inside confrontations. I find that a lot of attention has been given to individual and group arguments and explanation. I further understand that THAT was what began the paper—communication with, what is referred to me as, the "team" or "crew".

I am given to understand, however, that a continuing information layout will be offered regarding these matters. Those will be solely the decision of the Editor(s) of CONTACT. Our nation is being methodically destroyed. I am in full agreement with the stance of this paper and all parties involved that there will be no indication or suggestion of violence as a solution to ANY-THING. I, further, am asking a contract which forms a legal agreement to that premise. We will never, I feel, be able to turn this corruption aside and reclaim anything worthy of our original national laws and Constitutional rights by advocating guns and roses. We must face facts that we are totally out-gunned but DO HAVE THE RIGHT TO DEFEND OURSELVES—WITH GUNS—IF THAT BECOMES A NECESSITY. I personally do not own a gun or lethal weapon past the very dull paring knife in my kitchen which would kill ONLY by the boredom of the action itself, of annoyance.

I am further asked to evaluate information brought to me as to content for journalistic purposes, request permission of authors (specifically mentioned to me was Eustace Mullins, Dr. Arthur Robinson, and so on) for reprinting of their superb observations and information. I believe that Dr. Coleman has offered his work for our focus as well. We are aimed at offering that which is outstanding in wisdom of presentations to fit into the ongoing effort to balance insight into root causes and ongoing focus as to problems.

I am told that the availability of these original works will be more easily come by as funding is secured for investment in the volumes from the authors. Until that time I am asked to continue the practice of referencing ordering information. Mr. Jackson promises input of funding resources which I find will adequately cover just about any product needs we might encounter. I must admit that I did not accept this premise or promise on "blind faith". I do indeed believe Mr. Jackson has the ability to offer funding to these projects brought to my attention AND sustain the operation of the paper, etc. I would not be making this major change in my personal direction if this were not expected. It appears these people who have continued to bear responsibility for this transition are due and owing a respite of some kind. I personally cannot imagine how they have managed to this point—until I see the massive support in love and giving which has been ongoing to them.

I do, however, see that there is much limitation from funding resources at the moment but I believe we can work diligently and now build the paper and other products more adequately as various legal confrontations can have more attention and become resolved. I do, however, study the ongoing litigations and find it atrocious in concept and ongoing invasion into every facet of your lives from attacks on the Phoenix Institute to the continued railroading tactics against the Ekkers. I may well editorialize on this subject but not unless required in specific instances, for my own attitude is that the less attention to the two-bit players in the assault and theft game, and the attorneys in these situations, the better. This does not mean, I well understand, that the pressure of public notice will be removed from the paper or publications.

I am told that, as more support can be obtained, there will be a regular updating of the Constitutional Law Center activities and that will not be my responsibility. I share this with you so that there is understanding about my contributions and responsibilities. I sat in on the early-in-the-week sessions and it was assumed that I have far more responsibility and focus than I have ever considered, much the less, given. I feel if I make this statement right up front, it will offer less distraction and consideration as we grow.

How did I become involved? This is another question asked constantly so let it be known that I have followed the paper almost from its beginning but did not realize that there was a prior EX-PRESS of some kind. I became personally involved through "incorporation" as a lot of my prior experience has been in attainment of privacy and security as the government closes down all avenues of protection.

I have, further, investigated the controversial "Institute" thoroughly (right through the litigations and possible receivership threat) and find it not only sound in practice but fully credible in concept and presentation. We all realize the expectation of a major increase by many-fold of the precious metals values as the world changes. I find the loans to this corporate business sound and about the last of the possibilities for the citizen interested in gain through current assets while awaiting the changes and increase in values of such metals. I WILL be writing more on this subject for I come as an objective participant and one having chosen this avenue of handling my own business. Moreover, I have found this to be the most fundamentally honestly run possibility around—and I have studied them ALL. I, right up-front, suggest you readers STOP focusing on the ongoing rubbish in the "assault on Ekkers" arena and turn your full attention to maintaining your privacy and security in a meaningful manner. We are NOT going to antagonize the Government or anyone else. My thrust and the demand upon me by these colleagues is to avoid, yea even "evade", all reflection of subversive intent OR rabble-rousing.

We, I am assured, are to be focused ONLY on printing information gathered and presented—by BOTH SIDES OF ISSUES—at every opportunity. We WILL place notices of meetings, gatherings, etc., but there will be no political action taken by or through this paper. We will, I am assured, present information to the best of our abilities.

Do my above mentioned statements indicate that I am some powerful "new" force or authority on CONTACT? No, it is just that I take this opportunity to introduce myself and respond to some already asked questions about my participation. I am a contributing journalist who is flexible in ability to grow as the publication grows.

I am honored to be asked to join in participation with this staff and look forward to a long and valuable service. My utmost wish, just as with other contributors to CONTACT, is that information be the focus and not the journalist. When other authors are credited or mentioned please allow the information to be the focus and support those authors and researchers.

The last inquiry I shall address is "...what will I do or think about the University of Science and Philosophy and/or Dr. Russell?" I am embarrassed to admit that I had never heard of either. I have a background heavily oriented to science and physics but was unfamiliar with the entities in point. I am, however, well informed on the SUBJECT in point as to "Light". Further, I don't find any copies of the material available here so am not able to further evaluate such material nor make reasonable comments. I do find that what is presented to me regarding the "material" is that I have encountered the scientific considerations in several other places and through other resources so am a bit curious as to litigation and accusations. What I recognize of the subject material is based on scientific input and therefore I find it most interesting that a suit was ever established. Further than that you will have to forgive my ignorance. Later, because of my own quizzical nature I will take up the subject of the scientific presentation, but I have absolutely no interest in limited access restrictions. On the SUBJECT under discussion I have found Tom Astley's work to be fully comprehensive and comprehensible. Thank you for your inquiries, but I have no ability to further comment.

To one last inquiry as to my initial "H" possibly being "Hatonn": No, the "H" is for Harton—sorry. I use the initial because I am most often referred to as "G.H."

My focus is on that which will be reprinted in the "REVIEW" volumes and in the newspaper itself. Thank you and may the "force be with you" (or is that taking liberties?). It would be nice if you also allow me a sense of humor. I understand that I can get by quite nicely if I refrain from "Greetings, Commander"!

I would now like to focus attention to ongoing events and a couple of articles I have selected to share because of the timely and ongoing focus on both the Haitian situation and also on the ongoing judicial antiprocess of a fair trial and just hearings for Mr. O.J. Simpson.

In the interests of speed required by the staff to get this *REVIEW* edition to press I will not editorialize but, rather, simply offer these articles for your use. We will move more into original material and investigative review as we "settle-in" but in an effort to move along and establish publication schedule I shall restrict input into this offering. We will have time to become better acquainted as we establish regularity and familiarity.

The first focus is not going to be in "article" format but rather a commentary on the Hatian circumstance. The second will be a reprinted article from a fellow Las Vegan to whom I give full credit and contact information.

WHY HAITI AND WHAT ABOUT HAITI?

DRUGS!!! I wish I could offer you some patriotic CAUSE for such as has happened in Haiti that would explain why a fully conscious and political action has occurred that would bolster your opinions of government activities. But—I cannot. There will, of course, be established a political "cause" which is conjured, but no, once again it is in the name of human rights but actually "DRUGS" which will be the focus.

Haiti is a recognized drug transshipment point, pure and simple. You will have to understand this to focus in on what has precipitated, finally, an act of aggression by the U.S. You must understand the participation of the CIA, the Mossad and the ongoing arguments over drug profits. You must understand that Cedras [*ousted military dictator*] refused to give the CIA and Mossad what they considered "their shares" of drug rakeoffs—just as did Noriega of Panama.

Heroin from Asia travels along the same routing as does Cocaine from South America. It is now obvious, however, that smuggling aliens is about as profitable as is the smuggling of drugs. It is also a lot less risk-filled for the "dealers". You have to realize that official INS reports are stated as noting the influx of Chinese smuggled into the U.S. through this routing in the past recent months. Over 30 thousand of "just" Chinese aliens are reported. This would be a routing originating in Colombia, for instance, moving to the North and going through both Cuba and Haiti.

The Washington Times has stated that Port-de-Paix has a reputation for contraband including drugs from Colombia. The main hotels "are brimming over with foreigners suspected of involvement in smuggling". This comes from an Army colonel, Antoine Atouriste, the director of Haiti's anti-narcotics office. He further says that his agents regularly report small planes taking off from Port-de-Paix headed northward toward Florida. Haiti, in short, is part of the plan to create chaos in America through drug use and crime. You can know that it will happen for everything will be topsy-turvy as the new Crime regulations and laws come into use.

The actions boil down to the fact that Cedras has refused to split the profits with the CIA or the Mossad— THE drug LORDS.

This is not some hidden or "unknown" matter. The *Washington Times* has shown the drug and smuggling routes via maps. On September 3, back in 1992, this paper laid out the fact that <u>the drug routes to the U.S. and the alien smuggling routes BOTH go right through Cuba and Haiti.</u> So what have you?

You have a duplication of George Bush's invasion of Panama, because of arguments over drug profits with Panamanian dictator Manuel Noriega, so is Bill Clinton's invasion of Haiti is based on the same reasons. This is all wrapped into, further, the need for funds for "*black operations*" (those operations for which Congress will not give open approval).

You must understand, readers, that the Israeli contract firms have been hired to train the Colombian drug cartel in terrorist operations over the past many years. The Mossad element was in full command in Panama and is in full command in Haiti. It is the *flow of money which fuels the Administration's policy both foreign and domestic.* As citizens we must come to understand these connections or we will not be able to properly protect ourselves, businesses—and assets. Most especially we must look to any retirement funds and programs.

We are now placing a man into power who is as vile as the most vile ever noted on our planet. This "FATHER" Aristide who is supposed to be, as presented by the population of Haiti, a full believer that the most wondrous aroma established "is the smell of necklacing". This, readers, is the result of a little game coming out of South Africa wherein a tire is placed around the shoulders of a victim and gasoline is poured

inside a rubber tire and set afire. He also has a neat fetish for burning Catholic churches—*with people inside*.

The facts are, readers, that the full backing of this heinous person is *directly by the World Jewish Congress and the World Zionist Government.*

Good luck, America—we are surrounded, our ship's hull is pierced and flooding—and we are "coming up" for the last time.

If you remain in denial, readers, I suggest that you follow a previous suggestion—that you get, AND STUDY, Terry Reed's book, COMPROMISED.

* * *

The next is offered by journalist Vin Suprynowicz. Vin is the assistant editorial page editor of the Las Vegas Review-Journal. His column is syndicated in the U.S. and Canada via Mountain Media Syndications, P.O. Box 4422, Las Vegas, NV 89127-4422

IS IT A SIN TO TELL A LIE?

Jury selection in the 1990s: How did we get where we are?

The lawyers who run our courts have conspired to strip the "ignorant rabble" of our real jury power while maintaining the form that makes it *appear* that we still practice trial by jury.

The Bill of Rights requires only one amendment to guarantee Freedom of the Press. One was judged sufficient to assure the Right to Bear Arms. So why does Trial by Jury require three separate amendments—the Fifth, Sixth, and Seventh?

Not because it was something new. The Germanic tribes had firmly established trial by jury in Britain by the ninth century. Every colonist was intimately familiar with the principle, and the practice.

But there was the rub. Principle can differ considerably from practice, and the number of separate guarantees which the Founders judged necessary reflect the variety of ways in which King George's minions—like many a tyrant before and since—had found to subvert the proper working of the jury process.

Tyrants can insist they still practice trial by jury while holding trials in secret or after delays of decades. Accusations can be anonymous; defendants can be given no advance knowledge of the charges; judges can order jurors to convict without explaining what the alleged crime was, as in the case of William Penn in London (a case every 18th century resident of "Penn"sylvania knew about).

All these creative abuses the Founders gave much thought to guarding against, so vital was it to protect a jury system which they rightly viewed as the final safeguard of our liberties.

Why final? Because no accused can be jailed or executed unless a jury of 12 citizens unanimously vote to allow it. And, as John Adams made clear before he became the second president, "It is not only (the

juror's) right, but his duty . . . to find the verdict according to his own best understanding, judgment, and conscience, though in direct opposition to the direction of the court."

Thus, our criminal law is not—repeat, not—based on majority rule. Fifty-one percent of a legislature may enact a law, five out of nine Supreme Court justices may OK it, but so long as one citizen in 12 considers that law an abomination, no convictions can result.

Why, then, if the jury is the final and most powerful body in our political system, do we witness the spectacle today of jurors actually crying as they render verdicts against their own conscience?

Jury tears were evident at the 1990 convictions of Jerry and Darlene Span of Phoenix (for "interfering with federal marshals" despite the fact it was the federal agents who trespassed and beat them up in a case of mistaken identity), Scott and Karen Scarborough of Waterford, MI (framed by a government snitch for "lying to a grand jury" about the snitch's smoke-bombing of a post office), and most famous of all, the Waco survivors, whose jury foreman, Sara Bain, now says she wishes they had set all the Branch Davidians free and ordered the indictment of the federal agents, though she "saw no place on the papers they gave us where there was a way to do that."

Imagine Americans of sound mind exiting the voting booth in tears each November, racked with sobs to realize they have voted for a tyrant who will jail thousands of their innocent neighbors, all because some "government official" said they had to.

How did this happen? The lawyers who run our courts have conspired to strip the "ignorant rabble" of our real jury power while maintaining the form that makes it *appear* that we still practice trial by jury. They've used two tactics:

1) True trial by jury requires randomly-selected juries. But under the guise of "guaranteeing objectivity", judges and prosecutors now use the so-called "voir dire" process to ask prospective jurors whether they would "have any problem sending someone to jail" for using drugs, hoarding ammunition without a license, or what have you. One prospective juror, Dianna Brandborg, was actually sentenced to three days in jail for "contempt" in Denton, TX, this March for refusing to answer 14 of the more than 100 questions on her jury questionnaire, including her salary, what church she belongs to, what kind of car she drives, and what books she reads—information used to stack the most obedient, pro-government jury possible.

It's not supposed to work that way. State prosecutions under the Fugitive Slave Act in the 1850s and alcohol Prohibition in the 1920s were abandoned in large part because randomly-selected juries were almost bound to contain one or more jurors who simply refused to convict anyone drinking or protecting a runaway slave. Such jurors would be identified in advance today and quietly shown the side door.

2) Then, with a properly compliant jury selected, judges these days often require a blatantly unconstitutional oath to "apply the law as I give it to you," followed with intricate fill-in-the-blanks "instructions", creating the impression the jury is there merely to complete a multiple-choice test, like painting by numbers.

This means one of the greatest moral dilemmas facing an American today is what to do when a judge

or prosecutor asks, "As a juror, would you have any problem sending this lad to jail for 20 years for (insert bogus crime against the bureaucracy)?"

Do you declare the drug and SEC and gun laws unconstitutional—thus guaranteeing a more malleable dupe will take your seat? Or do you tell less than the truth?

Is it always morally required to tell the whole truth? What if your teenage daughter were hiding in the closet, and the robbers holding you at gunpoint asked if there were any nubile young women about? Would your moral scruples require you to say, "Yes, actually, you missed my half-naked virgin daughter hiding in the closet over there?"

I didn't think so.

* * *

This was offered as a "Commentary". I found it most appropriate as I have now studied depositions, hearing transcriptions, court orders, motions and other idiotic legal writings as just apply to the various and sundry litigations taking place with Ekkers. I can be rather objective, not having known the Ekkers until now, but I find it all rather incredible. I note that in all the some seven years of a variety of ongoing encounters—the Ekkers themselves have yet to even be recognized in court, much the less—heard! I further note that the "Ekkers" are treated as both defendants and plaintiffs in situations where they are not either.

This brings us to wonder that the "property" in jeopardy is a person's life, such as may well be the case with an "O.J. Simpson", wherein lies neither justice, fairness of hearing nor trial by "peers". I join with all who demand a return to CONSTITUTIONAL LAW and a clearing of our courts of these parties claiming "titles of nobility". It is time to claim our rights to honest courts with magistrates credibly elected under the Constitution and a clearing out of ALL "CLUB" MEMBERS ATTACHED TO THE BAR ASSOCIA-TION. A ticket to practice law issued by a private corporation CLUB association is NOT the same as a Board of Quality "LICENSE" to SERVE THE LAW under our *Constitution*.

Once again referring to the Ekker legal plight and ongoing variety of actions most recently in my review, I find that in a case wherein there is alleged taking of hard substance (gold) of great value—there was almost NO REFERENCE to the cause of action—but every other distraction which could be dredged, paid for in outrageous attorney fees and unending quarreling and depositions AND political and press GARBAGE heaped on by, in full embarrassment of journalistic honor, the Associated Press.

America, WE ARE IN TROUBLE

CHAPTER 1

MISCELLANEOUS NEWS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

****REQUEST FROM RONN JACKSON****

The time is <u>NOW</u>! We, as a Nation, are at a cross-roads. It is decision time. You readers have asked for it, so now I am asking you to back-up your words with deeds, support, and feedback.

Current Government is at its end. Change is on the horizon and it is up to you. We must take back control of our country. The only viable alternative remaining is to start anew, using the existing magnificent document upon which our nation was founded—the Constitution of the United States. It is our only hope.

What do I mean by these statements? It is now time to form a *Constitution*al government apart from Washington, D. C. that is <u>for</u> and <u>of</u> the people—NOT with the present government's representatives or special interest groups.

What are your thoughts on this matter? Please write and share them. If you don't want to include your name or address, that is understandable—but, by all means, do write.

TO: Ronn Jackson c/o: *CONTACT* Las Vegas, NV 89126

* * *

WE'RE BACK! BUT WHICH WAY IS UP? ONLY TIME WILL TELL

Yes, it's true: for the first time since CONTACT's birth on 3/30/93 out of the ashes of its predecessor, *THE PHOENIX LIBERATOR*, we <u>suspended</u> publication last Tuesday, 9/13/94, due to a lack of funds. Maybe it does so at the secret, underground genetic engineering laboratories but, here above ground, money doesn't grow on trees—and you know how that story goes. It was a difficult emotional decision, but there was no other option.

Moreover, legitimate questions are being raised about the believability of some we have been inclined to look up to for support and leadership. Rick Martin sets the tone of that thinking in an excellent *Reflection On*—,(see chap. 4). PLEASE read that first!

Then take in the important lesson about how we have slid down the road from a Republic to a Democracy (see chap. 20). This kind of piece is typical of what our readers expect of us—as being an important

teaching instrument for those who are serious about reclaiming this nation. Reclamation is not as hard as some think, if intelligent effort is applied in the right way. Look in **chapter 9** for the most outstanding example to date—Hawaii's sovereignty project. Now <u>there's</u> a miracle in action!

Our country is indeed in the process of a great awakening, at the grass-roots level, through many dedicated souls who have become energized with the power of THE TRUTH from CONTACT and others like us, and who then labor with sure conviction in the fields of dreams that CAN come true. Let's just hope that we can keep up our end of the effort for all of you out there who depend on us. — *Dr. Edwin M. Young, Editor-In-Chief*

* * *

THE NEWS DESK by Rick Martin 9/9/94

RANDY WEAVER & RUBY RIDGE

[Quoting:]

Attorneys for Randy Weaver, his family and Kevin Harris on Aug. 18 filed complaints seeking more than \$100 million in damages against individual federal agents who shot and killed both Weaver's wife, Vicki, and son, Sam, during the 1992 siege of the Weaver cabin on Ruby Ridge in Idaho.

The latest claims are separate from suits against the U.S. Government, which were filed two weeks ago. The new suits seek payment from individual U.S. marshals, FBI agents and their supervisors who directed the raid.

Chuck Peterson, attorney for Weaver and his three daughters, told the SPOKESMAN-REVIEW of Spokane, Wash., that his clients are seeking a total of \$170 million for the deaths of Vicki and Sam, plus the shooting injury to Randy Weaver, and other damages.

Harris is seeking more than \$10 million in damages from 12 federal agents, including the sniper who shot him.

HELICOPTER HARASSMENT

In a recent article from THE LOS ANGELES TIMES, written by Tracy Wilson, [quoting:]

Droning helicopters kept hundreds of Oxnard, Calif. residents awake Tuesday night as a detachment of Marines from Camp Pendleton practiced urban navigation training over a quiet residential neighborhood.

Simulating a terrorist situation, six Marine Corps helicopters hovered and swooped in the vicinity of the Ventura Freeway and Rose Avenue from about 9 to 10:30 p.m., frightening and angering nearby residents.

"It was loud. They weren't very far from my house," Oxnard resident Hanet Heistad said. "You could hear this 'glob-glob-glob, glob-glob.' It was irritating, to say the least."

"They were right above our heads," Vaughn said. "I was thinking that somebody broke out of jail or something. It scared me."

The nighttime maneuvers were part of the 13th Marine Expeditionary Unit's 180-day training mission, which is being carried out at various sites along the West Coast, Sgt. Doug Anderson said.

The two-hour maneuver featured six helicopters—including AH-1 Cobras and UH-1 Hueys and a small Marine unit on foot in the Oxnard area.

"If we announced that this was going to be happening, we would have had a lot of spectators," he said. "And that would have been detrimental to the training mission."

WOMEN SPIES

DEFENSE CONTRACTORS

COUNCIL ON FOREIGN RELATIONS

In an article [*or letter from reader*] from the July 24 edition of the VALLEJO TIMES-HERALD (Calif.), written by Edward Donohoe [quoting:]

If the selection of Judge Stephen G. Breyer is confirmed by the U.S. Senate, three members of the Council on Foreign Relations will be serving on the Supreme Court. Yet, very few Americans have any idea of the subversive nature of this private organization and how great its influence has become.

The Council on Foreign Relations has been working since its inception in 1921 to build total government here in our nation as a major step toward world government and the destruction of national independence.

Under our *U.S.* Constitution, there are supposed to be three separate and distinct branches of government, each exercising power to check and balance the others. But if all the branches of government are controlled by like-minded individuals who come from the same organization, that organization ends up with vast power.

This is where we are in America today, the CFR membership roster lists President Clinton, Secretary of State [Warren] Christopher [A5 on the Committee of 16 (17)], and hundreds more officials of the executive branch—they control it.

But that's not all. The legislative branch is also led by CFR members such as House Speaker Foley, House Majority Leader Gephardt, Senate Majority Leader Mitchell, and dozens of other senators and representatives.

The nation's media will not inform Americans about this situation. The roster of about the 3,000-member CFR lists the names of leaders of major newspapers, magazines and radio and television networks.

Judge Breyer's membership in the CFR—along with the memberships of Sandra Day O'Conner and Ruth Ginsburg—should be an issue...

Any study of the Council on Foreign Relations will show that its goal is the submergence of the United States into a one-world system led by a powerful few. This is the New World Order that most Americans have heard about but don't really understand. If these plans are not exposed and turned aside, we will soon lose our freedoms and the country we love will cease to exist as a sovereign nation.

INTERNATIONAL MONETARY FUND

In an article from the Sept. 7 edition of *THE* WALL STREET JOURNAL, PARIS—[quoting:]

The slowdown in the world economy that marked the early 1990s "appears to have run its course," and the upturn in trade and growth will be faster than had been forecast in the spring, according to economists at the International Monetary Fund.

The IMF now expects industrial countries to show an average growth rate of 2.6% in 1994 and 2.7% in 1995, an upward revision of 0.2 and 0.1 percentage point, respectively, from its forecast in April.

The upbeat forecasts are contained in a confidential semiannual report that has been distributed to member governments. The report endorses the rise in U.S. official interest rates since the beginning of this year and says further tightening is necessary.

At the same time, the IMF warns that the rise in long-term interest rates may hold down some recoveries, while high unemployment in Europe is an obstacle to improved consumer confidence.

POPULATION CONFERENCE

In an article from the Sept. 8 edition of *THE WALL STREET JOURNAL*, written by Peter Waldman, CAIRO, Egypt—[quoting:]

As a contentious United Nations Conference on Population and Development reaches its midpoint today, abortion, a relatively minor item on the agenda, overshadows everything else.

The week began with U.N. Secretary General Boutros Boutros-Ghali proclaiming that "the future of human society" rests on the solutions the conference finds to controlling the world's ever-expanding population. But with the Vatican and some Latin American nations refusing to countenance any hint of a woman's right to an abortion, the process of reaching a consensus "Plan of Action" to limit population growth has bogged down over this single issue.

"We're at a time of respectful disagreement," says Undersecretary of State Timothy Wirth, the head U.S. negotiator, understating the exasperation felt by the U.S. and other delegations as the abortion wrangle

drags on.

The latest compromise bid fell apart Tuesday night when the Vatican and several nations with a majority Roman Catholic population expressed dissatisfaction with an abortion paragraph proposed by the European Union. That paragraph, which still may be adopted if compromise can be reached, begins with a categorical rejection of abortion "as a method of family planning". It also limits abortion to countries where it is legal—a seemingly redundant qualification meant to answer Vatican charges that the U.S. and other nations favor an international right to abortion.

The Vatican reiterated its views in a speech yesterday by Archbishop Renato Martino, the Holy See's permanent observer to the U.N. and its chief delegate to the Cairo conference. In an eloquent, if combative, address, Archbishop Martino decried today's "attitudes of sexual permissiveness, which focus above all on personal pleasure and gratification."

In a subtle game of diplomatic ping pong, the cleric repeated, without attribution, Vice President Al Gore's references to "a holistic vision of health", but criticized the concept as too individualistic, reminding Mr. Gore "that human sexuality is of its very nature interpersonal."

FAMILY

In an article from the Aug. 30 edition of THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, [quoting:]

Perhaps the word traditional shouldn't be applied to families any longer.

Almost half of all U.S. children live in families that include single parents, grandparents, step-parents or others, the U.S. Census Bureau reported Monday.

"With more and more women bearing children out of wedlock, along with high divorce rates, more children than ever are spending at least part of their childhood in single-parent families," said Stacy Furukawa, who wrote the report.

The report, based on 1991 statistics, found 32.3 million U.S. children live in so-called non-traditional families, meaning those with only one biological parent, extended families including grandparents, other relatives or nonrelatives, or in families that include stepparents and half brothers and sisters.

White children were much more likely than black or Hispanic children to live in a home with two biological parents and children who are all full biological siblings, the report found.

COMPUTER VIRUSES

PLO & THE POPE

In an article from the Sept. 4 edition of THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, [quoting:]

Pope John Paul II said Saturday that the Vatican was close to sealing diplomatic ties with the Palestine

Liberation Organization. The Vatican, which has supported the right to a Palestinian homeland, has sought to strengthen its ties with the Arab world since it began working toward full relations with Israel in July 1992. The Vatican established full diplomatic relations with Israel in June. It is not clear whether the Vatican will base its representative in the Gaza Strip or the West Bank town of Jericho, which is under limited Palestinian self-rule, or elsewhere in the Middle East.

GORILLAS

In an article from the Aug. 31 edition of *THE* ORLANDO SENTINEL, KARISOKE RESEARCH CENTER, Rwanda—[quoting:]

Shards of glass and torn files litter the forest floor, evidence Rwanda's deadly civil war has reached high into the Virunga Forest, home to half the world's rare mountain gorillas.

In the forest that straddles Rwanda's border with Zaire and Uganda, the research camp featured in the movie GORILLAS IN THE MIST stands ransacked and nearly deserted.

But what has happened to the shy primates themselves?

Only about 600 mountain gorillas remain on Earth. About 320 lived in Virunga Forest before the civil war erupted anew in April.

"There's no reason for major worry right now," said Jose Kalpers of the International Gorilla Conservation Program, which helps run Karisoke.

"As long as there's no disturbance in the forest, the gorillas have no reason to move—it's not as if they're listening to the radio.

"But there's no surveillance at all and the potential risks are quite high," he said.

FOREIGN PRISONERS

In an article from the Aug. 21 edition of THE DENVER POST, written by Bruce Finley, [quoting:]

As Uncle Sam wages drug war worldwide, his prisons are becoming a United Nations behind bars.

South American soccer players and Middle Eastern Muslims are mixing with U.S. weight-lifters and hamburger-lovers in a federal prison population that represents 169 countries.

In the newest prison complex in Florence, Colo., 28 percent of the inmates are foreigners, slightly higher than the national average of 25.9 percent. The percentage of foreign federal prisoners lingered in the single digits until a decade ago, according to Bureau of Prisons records, when President Reagan boosted anti-drug enforcement.

Now, jailing foreigners costs U.S. taxpayers more than \$1 million a day. Federal prisons are jammed 38 percent over capacity. The government has spent \$2.8 billion since 1990 to build new prisons.

In an article from the Aug. 28 edition of *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, written by Thom Shanker, MUNICH, Germany—[quoting:]

The envelope arrived at police headquarters by regular mail. Inside were two computer disks containing threats to detonate nuclear devices in four German cities unless the blackmailer won 100 million deutsch marks, about \$64 million, in the government lottery.

The message was taken seriously, one law-enforcement official said, because it contained "a frightening amount of insider knowledge." It was also the second attempt at nuclear blackmail in Germany in the past year, police revealed.

Fears of nuclear blackmail, long the stuff of espionage novels and doomsday prophets, have been heightened by four seizures of high-quality nuclear materials in Germany since May. Three of the cases involved lethal plutonium-239, and the fourth was a highly enriched uranium.

Most conjecture has focused on whether renegade states—Iran, Iraq, Libya or North Korea, for example—would be able to devote the financial resources necessary to acquire bombmaking material, hire technical expertise and actually build a nuclear device.

Some national security experts say, however, that the greater threat is that terrorist cells or criminal gangs with more limited resources would attempt to further their political or financial agendas by using smaller amounts of nuclear material in a blackmail scheme.

They don't even have to produce a complicated nuclear device. Instead, these groups could threaten to release a small amount of highly toxic plutonium to poison a major metropolitan water supply.

Or they could wrap nuclear material around a conventional explosive—such as that used to wreck the World Trade Center—to send carcinogenic nuclear dust billowing over a city.

With all the publicity surrounding the recent arrests of nuclear couriers, it might not be necessary to possess any radioactive material to make a seemingly credible threat.

"Governments cannot underestimate the psychological effect such a terrorist threat might present," he said. "Even if someone pretends to poison a water supply or to release this material into the air, it would be enormously dangerous. The psychological effect might far exceed the actual, material threat."

In the most recent case of attempted blackmail, law enforcement sources say that on Sept. 6, 1993, an envelope containing two computer disks arrived at Bavarian State Police headquarters in Munich.

The blackmailer provided a list of numbers he planned to play in the government's popular lottery and a matching series of dates between September 1993 and Dec. 31, 1994, on which the numbers were to be announced as the winners.

Otherwise, the message read, "thermonuclear explosive devices" would be detonated in Munich, Berlin, Frankfurt and Hamburg.

Police were able to determine the type of computer equipment used to compose the threats, but their investigation is stymied. The ransom demands have not been met, and the backmailer never again contacted police.

The second case of attempted blackmail stems from a smuggling deal gone awry for a 37-year-old businessman in Saarbruecken, in southwest Germany.

The man received a container of strontium-90, the first of 16 loads promised by a group in Kiev. German police seized the initial shipment and when the smugglers learned of it, they demanded the businessman pay anyway.

The smugglers said the rest of the strontium-90 was buried in Germany and they would not disclose its location. Over time, the seals on containers could break, thus risking leaks of the material into the atmosphere.

Police, working with Interpol and prosecutors in Ukraine, interrogated a 17-member Kiev gang that had been dealing in radioactive materials.

In July 1993 police and scientists from the environment ministry uncovered 16 containers of strontium-90 buried in plastic bags at the Ludwigskreis, a major intersection in Saarbruecken. The seals on the containers were unbroken and there had been no leak of contaminants.

WHITE BUFFALO

In an article from the Sept. 3 edition of *THE* ORLANDO SENTINEL, JANESVILLE, Wisc.—[quot-ing.]

News of the birth of a rare white buffalo is spreading among Native Americans, inspiring pilgrimages to what many tribes believe is a sacred animal.

"This is like the second coming of Christ on this island of North America," said Floyd Hand, a Sioux medicine man from Pine Ridge, S.D. "The legend is she would return and unify the nations of the four colors—the black, red, yellow and white."

The white calf named Miracle was born two weeks ago at the southern Wisconsin farm where Dave Heider raises a herd of 14 buffalo and other animals.

The white buffalo is particularly sacred to the Cheyenne, Sioux and other tribes of the Northern Plains that once relied on the buffalo for subsistence.

The white buffalo's spiritual significance stems from its rarity. In the 1800s, when up to 80 million of the huge animals roamed the Plains, the odds against having an albino calf were estimated at one in 10 million.

As of Wednesday, about 30 people from the Oneida, Cherokee, Sioux and a half dozen other tribes had visited the calf, Heider said.

"One woman flew in from Arizona, paid her respects, and then she was gone," he said.

Visitors have held ceremonies involving prayers.

Sue Wittig, a Chippewa from Milwaukee, has set up a trust fund at a Janesville bank for donations to help Heider care for the calf.

"They are sacred to all tribes. She is important to all Native American people," Wittig said. "It's been predicted that it would be born again. I look at it as a chance for peace, an opportunity for healing."

NUCLEAR FEUD

In an article from the Aug. 21 DENVER POST, written by Thomas W. Lippman and R. Jeffrey Smith of *THE* WASHINGTON POST, [quoting:]

The end of the Cold War is making new enemies of old friends in the U.S. Government, provoking an increasingly visible feud between top officials of the Defense and Energy Departments over management of the U.S. nuclear weapons stockpile.

After years of working hand-in-hand to build and test the world's most powerful arsenal, the two departments are at odds over how the government should spend the dwindling resources it devotes to nuclear arms.

The feud reflects in part an ideological dispute over the role such arms should have in future national security policy, now that they have fallen from the pedestal such weapons occupied since 1945.

The feud now centers on a benign-sounding concept: nuclear "stockpile stewardship." But it involves nuclear weapons programs at the Energy Department worth an estimated \$1.7 billion annually and proposals to spend hundreds of millions of dollars more on new facilities for testing nuclear weapons components or on experiments that produce small nuclear explosions.

PAKISTAN

In an article from the Aug. 24 edition of THE MODESTO BEE, ISLAMABAD, Pakistan-[quoting:]

Contradicting assertions by Prime Minister Benazir Bhutto, ex-premier Nawaz Sharif said Tuesday that

Pakistan already has a nuclear bomb...

UNITED FARM WORKERS

In an article from the Sept. 5 edition of *THE* DENVER POST, FRESNO, Calif.—[quoting:]

The United Farm Workers is enjoying swelling membership rolls and increased representation, organizers said at the union's 12th national convention, the first since founder Cesar Chavez died.

"There is a lot of enthusiasm, a lot of commitment to carry on Cesar's work of forming a strong farm workers' union," union President Arturo Rodriquez said of the 500 delegates who attended the convention Saturday and yesterday.

The union has signed 10,000 new members this year and won seven union-representation elections, the latest on Friday.

ILLEGALS

In an article from the Aug. 28 edition of the SANTA BARBARA NEWS-PRESS, SAN DIEGO—[quoting:]

A well-known scientist from California State University Chico is advocating that the U.S. Border Patrol track down illegal immigrants by sprinkling the border with a fluorescent, glowing dust.

In a plan proposed by physicist Bill Wattenburg in Friday's issue of SCIENCE magazine, illegal immigrants at the U.S.-Mexico border would pick up the invisible dust and be "tagged" for capture.

The Border Patrol would use ultraviolet lights and lasers to track down the marked people, said Wattenburg, who also hosts a radio talk show in San Francisco.

Dusting the border with the invisible chemical would not cost a lot of money nor would it pose danger to people, Wattenburg Said.

RUSSIA'S GRAIN

In an article from the Sept. 6 edition of THE WALL STREET JOURNAL, MOSCOW-[quoting:]

Russia will import six million metric tons of grain this year, just over half the level of overseas purchases last year, the ITAR-Tass news agency reported Friday.

In 1993, Russia supplemented domestic production of 99.1 million tons with 11 million tons of imports. This year, according to the ministry, the harvest is expected to come in around 90 million tons.

The ministry conceded that imports were more cost-effective than domestic production for supplying Russia's Far East, where transport from central agricultural regions makes domestic grain more costly than

imports from the Americas.

SMALLEST VIDEO

In an article from the Aug. 29 edition of *THE* MONTREAL GAZETTE, TOKYO—[quoting:]

Japanese electronics manufacturer Hitachi Ltd. has developed the world's smallest video camera...

Hitachi Ltd. made the prototype, which fits in the palm of a hand, using a semiconductor chip instead of tape to store video data.

The camera, however, will not be on the market for another five years...

PRODUCTIVITY DECLINE

In an article from the Sept. 8 edition of Southern California's DAILY NEWS, written by Robert Naylor, [quoting:]

The productivity of America's businesses registered the biggest decline in five years while production costs rose in the April-June quarter, a revised government report released Wednesday showed.

Productivity—defined as output per number of hours worked—dropped at an annual rate of 2.5 percent in the nonfarm business sector during the second quarter, the Labor Department reported. It was the sharpest decline since 1989, when productivity fell at an annual rate of 3.7 percent.

JAPANESE UNEMPLOYMENT

In an article from the Aug. 31 edition of *THE* WALL STREET JOURNAL, written by Jathon Sapsford, TOKYO—[quoting:]

Japan's unemployment rate hit a seven-year high of 3% in July, a sign the nation's labor market is deteriorating even as its economy shows signs of a turnaround.

By global standards, of course, Japan's unemployment rate is still enviably low. But in a nation where lifetime employment has long been taken for granted, economists say July's data augurs ill for future Japanese job seekers.

NEW CAPITAL OFFENSES

JAPANESE PLEDGE

In an article from the Sept. 1 edition of *THE* WALL STREET JOURNAL, written by David P. Hamilton, [quoting:]

With the 50th anniversary of the end of World War II approaching, the Japanese government unveiled a 10-year, \$1 billion program of exchanges and historical research intended to convince its Asian neighbors of Tokyo's remorse for its wartime activities.

Yet that package finesses such major issues as financial compensation to the thousands of foreign women forced to serve in Japan's military brothels, and makes it unlikely that Japan can take the postwar moral high ground soon.

In a statement read by government officials, Prime Minister Tomiichi Murayama cited his own "profound self-reflection" over the war and said the news "Peace, Friendship and Exchange Initiative" is intended to help Japan "look squarely at our history" to "clear up the future of the Asia-Pacific region."

MALAYSIA TELLS JAPAN

In an article from the Aug. 28 edition of *THE* MODESTO BEE, KUALA LUMPUR, Malaysia—[quot-ing]

Malaysia's leader stunned Japanese Prime Minister Tomiichi Murayama on Saturday by declaring that Tokyo should stop apologizing for World War II and start being a world leader in keeping the peace.

JAPAN & WORLD ECONOMY

In an article from the Sept. 7 edition of *THE* WALL STREET JOURNAL, written by Terence Roth, [quoting:]

The U.S. has replaced Japan as the world's most competitive economy for the first time since 1985, but middle-income Americans have paid a stiff price in the process, according to an annual global survey conducted by two organizations in Switzerland.

NUCLEAR TECHNOLOGY

In an article from the Sept. 9 edition of *THE WALL STREET JOURNAL*, written by Timothy Noah, [quoting:]

The Energy Department said the transfer of plutonium-reprocessing technology over the past seven years from the U.S. to Japan may have violated U.S. law.

The transfer of the reprocessing technology, which could substantially increase the availability of highgrade plutonium in Japan, came to light at a news conference held here by the environmental group Greenpeace. That organization contends that the Energy Department improperly failed to classify the transferred technology as "sensitive nuclear technology" despite its legal requirement to do so. While exports of "sensitive" technology aren't banned outright, such a classification makes exporting much more difficult.

GERMAN PARTY

In an article from the Aug. 24 edition of THE DENVER POST, BERLIN-[quoting:]

Germany's interior minister yesterday placed the right-wing Republican Party under federal surveillance after its leader announced an alliance with the ultranationalist German People's Union.

Interior Minister Manfred Kanther said the political compact disclosed earlier yesterday, proved that the Republicans are "sliding further on the slippery slope toward extremism."

The intent of the surveillance order, Kanther indicated, is to determine whether the Republicans are "anticonstitutional," a classification already applied to the People's Union, which is led by Gerhard Frey, a staunch friend of Russian ultranationalist Vladimir Zhirinovsky.

HOW MANY MORE PEOPLE?

CHINA & LABOR

In an article from the Sept. 6 edition of THE WALL STREET JOURNAL, [quoting:]

China disclosed violent attacks on factory managers and their families by workers angry about losing their socialist safety net under economic reforms.

The BEIJING YOUTH DAILY said incidents in the past two years included the hiring of thugs by six women at a meat and egg plant to beat up their boss, and the knifing murder of a textile factory chief's wife.

As China is recasting costly cradle-to-grave job and social security, many unprofitable state enterprises must restructure or close; some have been unable to pay wages. At the same time, housing, medical care and other benefits are costing workers more, while inflation sparked by an economic boom is eroding their living standards. As a result, illegal work stoppages and strikes have been reported.

CHINA & POLLUTION

In the same edition, [quoting:]

China's government vowed to clean up the Huai River, one of the dirtiest in the country, and to shut factories in the river basin that refuse to treat wastewater by 1996. The Huai is China's third-largest waterway after the Yangtze and Yellow rivers. It became seriously polluted in late July, contaminating the drinking water of hundreds of thousands of people...

CHINESE INFLATION

In an article from the Sept. 8 edition of *THE* WALL STREET JOURNAL, written by Kathy Chen, [quoting:]

Inflation in China remained stubbornly above 20% in August on an annual basis, keeping pressure on the nation's leaders to balance two sensitive goals: accelerating difficult reforms and preserving jobs.

The perpetual dilemma for policy makers is how to curb credit and cool upward pressure on prices without shutting down money-losing state enterprises and throwing millions out of work. If the government takes an austere line and tries to shut off its cash spigot to frail state firms, inflation may drop but social chaos could result. But if the government continues to pump out subsidies, the flood of money chasing goods will spur inflation.

In a way, China's leadership is trapped in a terrible Catch-22. Inflation won't go away until the yawning cash maw of the state sector is closed. Yet despite an ambitious plan unveiled last year to introduce modern management to state firms, little has been done because of fears that layoffs and closures would lead to widespread worker unrest. Officials now say they will turn to the task next year, once social-security systems are set-up, and if inflation cools.

CHRYSLER'S SLAVE LABOR

In an article from the Aug. 24 edition of THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, [quoting:]

A Hong Kong newspaper reported Tuesday that Chrysler Corp. is a joint-venture partner of a Chinese company that has links to prison labor. *THE EASTERN EXPRESS* said it had documents showing Chrysler's partner Beijing Autoworks Industrial Corp. had "since 1992 forged strong production ties with the New Face Vehicle Refit Factory, a labor camp employing thousands of convicts in small workshops all over the capital." A spokesman for Chrysler denied the report, saying the use of prison labor was forbidden under the company's code of ethics.

CHINESE PRISONERS

In an article from the Aug. 29 edition of *THE* JOHNSON CITY PRESS, written by Renee Schoof, BEIJING—[quoting:]

Executed prisoners are the source of most organ transplants in China, and the donors sometimes are still alive when their organs are removed, a human rights group says.

In some cases, kidneys have been removed from prisoners the night before their executions, and some executions have been deliberately botched to keep the bodies alive longer and improve chances of organ transplant success...

AUSTRALIAN DROUGHT

In an article from the Sept. 6 edition of THE WALL STREET JOURNAL, [quoting:]

Drought in much of eastern Australia is continuing to worsen, now affecting 83% of the state of New South Wales. The drought, considered worse than a devastating dry spell in 1982, has caused hundreds of millions of dollars in losses for Australia's wheat and cotton crops. Most farmers are hand-feeding sheep and cattle with fodder, but supplies on New South Wales farms are almost exhausted.

AUSTRALIAN REPUBLIC

In a brief article from THE CHICAGO SUN TIMES, dated July 14, [quoting:]

A government campaign to sever Australia's links to the British crown received a big boost as the middleof-the-road Australian Democratic Party threw its weight behind the call for a republic. The Democrats, along with a small group of independents, hold the balance of power in the Senate. The ruling Labor Party has proposed substituting the British monarch with an Australian head of state.

ZINC STUDY

In an article from the Sept. 2 edition of *THE* WALL STREET JOURNAL, written by David Stipp, BOSTON—[quoting:]

Zinc, sometimes recommended in large doses to ward off diseases of old age, may help trigger Alzheimer's disease, a study suggests.

In test-tube experiments, researchers found that adding tiny amounts of zinc to a solution containing a chemical normally found in the brain causes the substance to curdle into glue-like clumps. Such clumps, called amyloid plaques, gum up the brains of people with Alzheimer's disease and are considered a hall-mark of the disease, which afflicts an estimated four million Americans with memory loss and other mental deterioration.

The researchers found that other minerals—including aluminum, which has been linked by several controversial studies to Alzheimer's disease—didn't cause significant amyloid clumping.

* * *

THE NEWS DESK by Ed Cleary 9/10/94

This is a commentary on excerpts from this Saturday (9/10/94) edition of the L.A. Daily News which range from heaven to Earth but in no single line is there a mention of the Creator, of God or of the spiritual destiny of the human race. This includes the Religion Page.

PREACHER CLINTON

By Michael Wines of The New York Times-NEW ORLEANS, "President Clinton told African-Ameri-

can Baptists at a convention Friday that government alone cannot halt the decline in social and moral standards."

The facts, rather, are that Clinton and his Democrats <u>could</u> contribute to social and moral behavior if their policies and actions were in alignment with God's Laws. His and their criminal policies and anti-God antics contribute in a major way to juvenile and adult delinquency here in this country and in all countries. Preacher Clinton deserves a lot of defrocking.

CAIRO, THE VATICAN AND THE U.N.

By Barbara Crossette of *The* New York Times—"The issue of abortion, forced to the forefront by the Vatican, has tied up the conference for nearly a week as the Vatican sought to excise any language suggesting that abortion was a woman's right.

"The Vatican on Friday gave up its struggle to significantly weaken language on abortion in a United Nations plan to stabilize population growth, clearing the way for delegates to draft a compromise recognizing that abortions are performed worldwide."

God got outvoted again as the anti-God UN adversary extends its criminal base (murder) and the New World Order gets into better position to kill off <u>Billions</u> of babies. The new lie for murder is "stabilize population".

MURDERERS MOVE INTO POSITION

From the *Associated Press*--WASHINGTON—'In a ratcheting-up of military forces in preparation for a possible invasion of Haiti, the Pentagon announced Friday that troops from one of its premier light infantry divisions would begin 'training operations' in the Caribbean.

"The Pentagon, in a statement late Friday, said the aircraft carrier Eisenhower and the command ship Mount Whitney would go to Norfolk, Va., over the next few days to pick up the troops and return to the Caribbean. The *Mount Whitney* was to arrive in port today and the *Eisenhower* on Monday, officials said."

The simple intelligence and logic of the Haiti business is that the people of the US, through their elected criminals, are going to allow a lot of human beings on Haiti to be murdered. Not all the evil excuses on the planet can ever justify these kinds of evil behavior.

The whole purpose of war is to kill the people who are in your way and take something away from them. There is no such thing as a moral war, save in people's heads. Mass murder can never be condoned. It is anti-God.

ANOTHER DC FARCE

by David Johnston of *The* New York Times, WASHINGTON—"A special panel of federal appellate court judges Friday named Donald Smaltz,, a Los Angeles lawyer, as the independent counsel to investi-

gate Agriculture Secretary Mike Espy's dealings with the nation's largest poultry-processing company.

"The appointment of Smaltz came one month after Attorney General Janet Reno asked the judges to name an outside prosecutor to examine whether Espy broke the law when he accepted sports tickets, lodging and travel from Tyson Foods Inc., the Arkansas-based chicken-processing company, and other corporations regulated by the Department of Agriculture."

I'll wager that Gary Wean has a bunch to say about this one.

AND SPEAKING OF LAWYERS

By Janet Gilmore, a Daily News Staff Writer—"Attorneys for Rodney King presented a bill for more than \$4 million to the city of Los Angeles on Friday, saying they are owed that much in fees for their work in King's lawsuit against the city.

"Deputy City Attorney Don Vincent said the demand was excessive.

"'I really don't think they should get over \$1 million,'Vincent said. 'Why should they get a windfall?'"

Are you able to discern the obscenity that is being cascaded on the people of Los Angeles?

* * *

JEWS CONDEMN ADL by Rick Martin 9/15/94

In an article from the September edition of the COLORADO CHRISTIAN NEWS, [quoting:]

Prominent members of the Jewish community have denounced a report by the Anti-Defamation League of B'nai B'rith (ADL) which criticized conservative Christians. An ad published in the Aug. 2 NEW YORK TIMES signed by 75 well-known Jews said, "We are a group of Jews who wish to make it known that we reject the implications of this report and deplore its publication."

On June 9 the ADL issued a report titled "The Religious Right: The assault on Tolerance and Pluralism in America." The report suggested that political activism by conservative Christians poses a threat to constitutional democracy in America, and accuses a number of conservative Christian organizations as leaders of anti-Semitism and bigotry.

The *NEW YORK TIMES* ad responding to the report said the ADL's "so-called evidence of a conservative Christian threat to Jewish security is derived from such discreditable techniques as insinuation and guilt by association."

The ad also asserted, "Judaism is not, as the ADL seems to suggest, co-extensive with liberalism," and noted that on the one issue which unites the Jewish community—the survival of Israel—"the Jews have no more stalwart friends than evangelical Christians."

Beth Gilinsky of the Jewish Action Alliance called the ADL report "a plainly partisan smear campaign against traditional Christians who energetically—and quite legitimately—advocate what they believe are important moral and social values." She concludes that although "Jewish-Christian friendship will survive the onslaught from the ADL, we are getting rather tired of sweeping up after repeated ADL fiascos."

CAIRO'S U.N. POPULATION CONFERENCE

In an article from the Sept. 13 edition of *THE* WALL STREET JOURNAL, written by Peter Waldman, CAIRO, Egypt—[quoting:]

With the United Nations population conference wrapping up here today, participants already are calling on governments to translate words into action.

Let's start by translating a few key words into French.

"We have no term for 'female empowerment,'" apologizes a woman who does French translations for the U.N.

Chinese? "Who is empowering whom?" asks a bewildered Chinese translator. "We can't work it out," he says.

Russian? "Female empowerment' is such vague terminology that I doubt it exists in any language but English," says Mika Kusmenko, the U.N.'s Russian translation chief. "Our translation of it doesn't mean much, either, so I guess it's accurate."

The Cairo conference will probably be remembered as the Great Abortion Showdown between the Vatican and most of the world, in which the Vatican found itself outnumbered. Yet something else of great moment has occurred at the International Conference on Population and Development these past nine days. The language and agenda of American-led women's groups—alien as the words may seem in many parts of the world—have been largely adopted by the biggest U.N. gathering in history.

Now, activists say, the conference's report will provide a strong set of international standards that women in developing countries can invoke in their struggle for more rights.

* * *

In an article from Southern California's DAILYNEWS dated Sept. 13, written by Daniel Platt, [quoting:]

Joseph Perkins' commentary on the Cairo population conference [*DAILY NEWS*, Sept. 9] correctly debunks the Malthusian mythos but presents a naive assessment of the politics behind it.

While it is correct to say that famine has occurred "mostly among people suffering under the yoke of despotic leadership," the picture is incomplete unless one takes note of the fact that every third-world despot reigns at the pleasure of the International Monetary Fund, which can and does pull the plug on any despot who doesn't play by its rules.

Under IMF rules, Third World nations are restricted to an economic strategy of exporting cheap raw materials and providing cheap labor. The majority of them are new exporters of capital, meaning that they are, in effect, providing "foreign aid" to the global investment banking community.

That these arrangements lead to famine is no surprise. However, it is important to see that the political entities that wish to perpetuate these arrangements are the most vociferous proponents of population reduction. Henry Kissinger was quite candid about this matter in his classified "National Security Study Memorandum 2000," written during the Ford Administration.

Kissinger's thesis was that, if population in key, resource-rich nations continues to grow, there will be a tendency for those nations to use their resources themselves, rather than providing them to us at involuntarily generous rates of exchange.

Last but not least, anyone who cares to go to a library and look can confirm for themselves that the vast funding and propaganda apparatus behind the Malthusian ideologues is the direct continuation of what was known, before World War II, as the Eugenics Movement. This should help to clear up for some people the mystery of why the world's most sparsely populated continent, Africa, is considered overpopulated, while the most densely populated, Europe, is not.

GREENSPAN CLASH

In an article from the Sept. 5 edition of the JOHNSON CITY PRESS, written by James Rubin, [quoting:]

A philosophical clash is emerging between Federal Reserve Chairman Alan Greenspan and the board's newest member over monetary policy—a rift that analysts say could have heavy political connotation.

Greenspan, a Republican appointee, maintains that the goal of monetary policy is to fight inflation.

Alan Blinder, a former Princeton professor picked by President Clinton as vice chairman at the Fed, takes the view that central bankers also should be mindful of job creation and unemployment when they adjust interest rates.

Analysts say the impact of any such rift would probably not be felt immediately, but that the stakes could be high before the next presidential campaign.

"There is a fundamental difference. It's now out in the open," said economist Robert Dederick of the Northern Trust Co. in Chicago.

Blinder said he believes unemployment can be reduced, at least for significant stretches, by allowing higher inflation. A central bank "should have a short-term employment objective in addition to its inflation objective," he said.

Analysts said while that approach places him squarely at odds with Greenspan, there may be no immediate practical impact because Blinder has joined in the Fed's current policy to send interest rates higher.

The dialogue among Fed members has been fairly one-sided for well over a decade, dominated by appointees of former Presidents Reagan and Bush. If anything, some board members believe that Greenspan has been too liberal and hasn't always been forceful enough in leading the drive against inflation.

"Greenspan has had really two objectives," he said [David Jones of Aubrey G. Lanston & Co.]. "The primary one is stable prices, and sustainable growth is secondary."

Greenspan's term expires in March 1996, and Blinder is viewed as a possible successor. But analysts agree that Blinder cannot sway the Fed by himself.

INTERSTATE BANKING

In an article from the Sept. 14 edition of *THE* WALL STREET JOURNAL, written by Albert Karr, [quoting:]

The Senate gave final congressional approval to interstate-banking legislation that is expected to add new impetus to bank mergers, as institutions expand across state lines.

U.S. LEADS IN WORLD MARKETS

WORLD BANK

In an article from the Sept. 12 edition of *THE* WALL STREET JOURNAL, written by Eduardo Lachica, [quoting:]

The World Bank is preparing to finance construction of a dam in the wilds of eastern Nepal, despite environmentalist's protests.

The bank's endorsement of the Arun hydroelectric project is exposing the Washington-based institution to fresh attacks as it uneasily celebrates its 50th anniversary. But the proposal to pick up \$175 million of the project cost is nonetheless on its way to the World Bank board for consideration.

Environmentalists also worry about the damage the Arun Valley could suffer during construction of the dam, a 122-kilometer access road and 11 major bridges. The area shelters one of the few pristine forests left in the Himalayan range, as well as a number of endangered species, such as the Asiatic black bear, the clouded leopard and the Annamese macaque. Once the building starts, some 9,500 workers, plus their dependents, will crowd into the valley, creating unprecedented strains on local water and food supplies.

ALBERTO FUJIMORI [A10]

In an article from the Sept. 4 edition of the JOHNSON CITY PRESS, LIMA, Peru-[quoting:]

President Alberto Fujimori's wife accused him of "psychological and moral violence" against her and sought a restraining order from a judge to prevent further harassment.

The lawsuit filed Friday on behalf of Susana Higuchi was the latest chapter in the marital flap involving Peru's first family. It asks the judge to order her husband to "cease immediately all types of psychological and moral violence."

The Fujimoris' marital dispute became public in early August when Higuchi protested a new law preventing the president's relatives from running for the presidency or Congress.

Higuchi, 44, admitted she was thinking about running for her husband's job next April.

On Aug. 23, Fujimori, 56, announced he was removing his wife from the honorary position of first lady.

BRAZIL & DART

In an article from the Sept. 12 edition of *THE* WALL STREET JOURNAL, written by Terence Donnelly, [quoting:]

A group of international commercial banks that orchestrated Brazil's bank debt restructuring this year is backing the country in its legal wrangle with the wealthy Dart family.

The bank group, known formally as Brazil's Bank Advisory Committee, last week filed a brief in U.S. District Court here. The brief seeks to weaken the Dart family's \$63 million civil suit against Brazil's Central Bank; Banco do Brasil SA, a Brazilian bank controlled by the government; and Citibank N.A., court records show. Citibank is named as a defendant in the suit only in a technical capacity as agent.

U.N. DEBT

In case you may have missed this one, taken from an article in the Aug. 26 edition of *THE* ALBUQUER-QUE JOURNAL, [quoting:]

In an effort to ease the financial crisis facing U.N. peacekeeping, the United States has agreed to pay the nearly \$900 million it owes in arrears, the U.S. ambassador said Thursday.

Madeleine K. Albright said President Clinton would sign a bill in the next few days authorizing \$1.2 billion for U.N. peacekeeping. The funds will cover the back dues and \$300 million toward the 1995 budget.

[? Ante-up for Haiti?]

BRANCH DAVIDIANS

In an article from the Sept. 8 edition of THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, WACO, Texas-[quoting:]

Branch Davidians may once again raise their voices in prayer at Mount Carmel, only this time with a difference. "I do not intend to see David Koresh's faction regain control of Mount Carmel," said Amo Bishop Roden, former wife of the man who lost control of the religious group to Koresh in the 1980s. All Branch Davidians are invited to return Oct. 19 for a weeklong meeting to choose a new spiritual leader, Roden said Tuesday. Four federal agents and six Davidians died on Feb. 28, 1993, when agents raided the compound to arrest Koresh on weapons charges. The standoff ended when the compound burned to the ground. Koresh and more than 80 followers died in the blaze.

INTELLIGENCE BUDGET

In an AP article from the Aug. 29 edition of THE MODESTO BEE, [quoting:]

The Defense Department intends to ask Congress to approve a \$27 billion, six-year spending plan for the super-secret National Security Agency and two other intelligence groups, according to a trade publication report.

In a story published in this week's edition, DEFENSE WEEK said it obtained internal Pentagon documents which spelled out the budget requests as approved by John Deutch, the deputy defense secretary.

The figures are for the National Security Agency, the Defense Intelligence Agency and the Central Imagery Office [*Central Imagery Office*?].

Not only are the budgets of these individual agencies classified secret, but the government's overall intelligence budget is secret, too.

DISCOVERY

You probably saw this one, but in case you missed it. The following comes from the Sept. 11 edition of *THE* OREGONIAN, CAPE CANAVERAL, Fla.—[quoting:]

Bright-green laser pulses streamed from Space Shuttle Discovery on Saturday and bounced off thick, high clouds over a tropical storm in the first atmospheric study of its kind.

Ground controllers directed the lasers at Tropical Storm Debby in the Caribbean as the Shuttle soared 160 miles overhead. The experiment was conducted in the early morning while it was dark, several hours after the Shuttle blasted off.

Light from the lasers was reflected off the clouds back toward Discovery ...

<u>GADHAFI</u>

In an article from the Sept. 2 edition of *THE* ALBUQUERQUE JOURNAL, written by Mariam Sami, TRIPOLI, Libya—[quoting:]

Moammar Gadhafi, watching a parade of hundreds of tanks rumble past, marked 25 years in power Thursday with slogans condemning the United States and the U.N. sanctions against Libya.

Gadhafi, dressed in a brown, short-sleeved uniform, waved and clasped his hands above his head as soldiers from the Green Revolutionary Army chanted about his "Fatah" revolution, meaning the "opening" in Arabic.

WOULD YOU BELIEVE

In an article from the Aug. 31 edition of the *MODESTO BEE* [*I think*], DEERFIELD, Ill-[quoting:]

Baxter International Inc., a big medical devices maker, is teaming with DNX Corp., a small biotech firm, to develop genetically altered pig organs to transplant into people.

DNX will also contribute many of the technologies that the partnership will pursue, including a program that aims to genetically modify pig organs include hearts, lungs and kidneys for transplantation into people.

TOBACCO FARMERS

In an article from the Aug. 31 edition of THE POWELL VALLEY [VA] NEWS, [quoting:]

Supporters of tobacco from a three-state area will converge in Tazewell, TN on Saturday, September 24. Farmers from Kentucky and Virginia plan to join their counter-parts in Tennessee at the J.C. Fairground to try to counter efforts by the federal government to put them out of business.

"Washington's efforts to put tobacco farmers out of business must be stopped if we are to continue to support our families," said Charlie McDaniels, one of the organizers of the event. "Tobacco is not just part of our economy—it IS the economy. Tobacco dollars support not only farmers but also our banks, equipment dealers, insurance agents, you name it. It supports our schools and churches, too."

"We don't want to see our local banks close, our schools shut down and our businesses close up shop," McDaniels continued. "But we can't support our communities on unsold tobacco. And that's exactly what we could have if we can't get our federal government to change gears."

McDaniels points to the recent wave of anti-tobacco initiatives in Washington, D.C. as evidence that it's time to stand up and be counted. Tobacco supporters face growing momentum from anti-tobacco activists who are making pushes to have Congress pass a national smoking ban, impose severe regulations on the tobacco industry and increase tobacco taxes by huge amounts to pay for the country's health care reform.

McDaniels explained the grower's situation. "Farmers are a hard-working, God-fearing group of people who don't normally like to cause a big fuss. But now they've got us angry—anger caused by generations of farm families who all of a sudden could be wiped out because certain people in Washington don't like what we grow."

What these farmers grow, McDaniels notes, is the #1 cash crop in Tennessee, Kentucky and Virginia. Tobacco brings in millions of dollars of income and tax revenues and provides over 300,000 jobs in these three states alone.

Rally organizers expect a huge turnout by growers, their families and other tobacco supporters. Elected officials from each state involved will also be invited.

"This rally will be a great opportunity for tobacco people to make their case to our government officials," said McDaniels. "It is shaping up to be one of the biggest political events this part of the state has ever seen, with officials for both parties."

That's important, according to McDaniels, because it's no longer a matter of politics. It's a matter of survival. "We can no longer afford to sit idly by and watch what goes on in Washington," McDaniels repeated.

SOME FACTS ABOUT THE BATF

The Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms is of the U.S. Treasury Dept. The U.S. Treasury Dept. was abolished in 1921 by The Act of 1920, 66th Congress Session, 11 ch. 214. (Sorry about that.) The expressed **Treasury Dept. is financially supported by the International Monetary Fund**. In 1989 Congress changed the oaths of all U.S. Government police; they now take it [*allegiance*] to the U.N.—no longer the U.S. Constitution. **The A.T.F.** [*personnel*] are 100% agents of a foreign principal.

They are implemented by regional or administrative government which is a socialist movement that has infiltrated the Constitutional government and replaced it with socialism.

This regional government was outlawed by a Supreme Court decision of 13 January 1982 in Case #80-1350 "Community Communications Co., Inc. vs. City of Boulder, Colorado."

Following the Supreme Court decision, on 22 February 1983, President Reagan dismantled the ten regional capitals by Executive Order #12407.

This regional government is still in power and functioning, but is, technically, de facto [*exercising power <u>as</u> if legally constituted*].

Anyone acquiring a federal firearms license (contract) comes under the jurisdiction of this foreign principal, which requires registration of all firearms sold by the federal licensed dealer, (form 4473)—which is policed by the A.T.F. agents.

In a Constitutional Republic Court of Law the BATF [*personnel*] are guilty of U.S.C. Title 18, Sec. 241, & 242, among others.

Not so in a corporate Tribune [such as our current status of de facto courts].

Compliance to these Agents is aiding and abetting a deadly enemy of the USA, its people, and its *Constitution*. [*The above arrived as an anonymous note to the* CONTACT *offices*.]

KEEP YOUR EYES OPEN AS EARTH CHANGES ACCELERATE by Soltec 9/18/94

Good afternoon, Toniose Soltec present in and with the Light of Holy God of Light. Today, there are so many, many things of significance occurring upon your planet, that we are kept extremely busy in the monitoring department. Not only are there three beings in Haiti, "negotiating" for a settlement to that situation, but you still have a Shuttle orbiting around your globe, playing little games of "laser beam tag".

Those three "negotiators" in Haiti are more up to "giving the store away" than they are negotiating a peaceful settlement to anything. How is it that Jimmy Carter, who was a disaster in the Presidency, all of a sudden is your most precious commodity when it comes to foreign policy negotiating? Your President is in trouble so far over his head and so inept in the position, that even Jimmy Carter now looks good to you ones. So it is not that Carter has gotten better, it is just that by comparison of what you have in Washington today, Carter appears to be competent. That ought to REALLY make you feel "safe and secure" this day!

How about the Space Shuttle? Yes, now there is another interesting little news tidbit for you: While your attentions are turned to the threat of military action upon that little island of Haiti, you have a Shuttle up there shooting green laser beams at your planet. Now isn't that fun? For what purpose are they using the planet for a little target practice? Had any shaking lately, California? Had any strange little weather occurrences? Felt any disturbances in the electromagnetic fields about you? Had any unexplainable power outages of late? How about disruptions or interference in communication networks? Computers acting up? Ah, I thought so. I don't believe that I need say any more—I think you have the picture.

[Editor's note: Remember, this past week, in one day there was a whole array of MAJOR computer & communications problems just in the Chicago area alone. These included dangerous O'Hare Airport control tower and MCI telephone system disruptions. But, of course, while reporting all of these, the media said, with a straight face, there were NO connections between these events?! And over here is the bridge that's still for sale.]

Let's talk a little bit about California and your most recent round of ground shaking. You had a nice little reminder of your current status last week—a little 6.0 or 6.3, depending upon who reports it, over there near the California-Nevada border area. That took place on September 12. Since that date, there have literally been *THOUSANDS* of aftershocks. Then, of course, you have had a few little shakers in Colorado and Utah, so you now have the interior areas of the North American Plate getting into the act.

I have told you ones that everything is interrelated and the quakes in these places are a direct result of the earthquakes which have been occurring along the coastal areas of California. As the Pacific Plate grinds past the North American Plate, it creates a great deal of stress and pressure. The North American Plate then must release that energy somewhere, for it is beginning to buckle as the Pacific Plate continues to press upon it. The North American Plate is moving basically in a westerly direction, while the Pacific Plate is moving in a north-easterly direction. You have two opposing forces coming into

conflict with one another and something, somewhere, sometime has to give.

That chain of mountains known as the Rockies was formed from exactly this type of action—so what might be happening now? Well, whenever there is buckling of a land mass, there is usually mountain building taking place. Where are the Rocky Mountains? Oh, in Colorado and Utah, perhaps? Mountains are built, usually, very slowly over many hundreds-of-thousands or millions of years, so don't go looking for a new mountain to form overnight. It is but the start of a cycle which will eventually push those mountains higher and perhaps form a few new, small hills and ridges. It is but part of the ever-changing face of your planet.

Now on to Japan. Japan is by no means out of the picture, for even this day, there is still significant seismic activity surrounding those little islands. Someday these little land masses will give way and disappear into the depths of the ocean, just as has been the cycle of this same part of your globe for eons. However, in this instance, it may not take hundreds-of-thousands or millions of years—for one good jolt within the depths of that deep oceanic trench there, could cause the land beneath the water to slip away and that above would simply drop, *WITHIN MINUTES OR HOURS*, into a watery grave. No, chelas, **Japan is, right now, in a most tenuous position.** Those who reside there are reminded, on a regular basis, of just how much in charge of the situation the planet really is.

The Japanese have some of the most intense earthquake disaster drills upon your planet, for they are fully aware that the disaster is coming, and it is not a matter of if, but a matter of when, for the warning signs are present and they know that when that big earthquake comes there will be massive destruction, death and injury.

The cities in Japan, such as Tokyo, are so over-populated with people and structures that an 8.0 earthquake there will literally destroy the city. As buildings collapse and people are crushed to death and buried alive, even more will perish in the aftermath. Then there will occur the succeeding Tsunami wave which will literally wash over the entire expanse of land. It will be destruction as you ones have never imagined possible.

There goes old Soltec trying to scare the pants off of people again. NO! I DO NOT LAY OUT THESE SCENARIOS TO FRIGHTEN YOU, FOR WE DO NOT WORK THAT WAY. FEAR IS NOT OUR GOAL—WELL INFORMED PEOPLE IS OUR <u>ONLY</u> GOAL! YOU WILL NOT BE EDUCATED BY YOUR SYSTEM AND MILLIONS WILL PERISH FROM LACK OF KNOWLEDGE! GET IT THROUGH YOUR HEADS HERE AND NOW THAT MANIPULATION AND CONTROL THROUGH FEAR IS A CREATION OF YOURS—NOT OURS.

The scenario I have painted for Japan is equally as possible along the western coastal regions of your United States of America as it is across the Pacific Ocean. You who reside west of the San Andreas Fault line are living on a separate land mass from those residing to the east of that fault line. These two land masses are <u>NOT</u> connected to one another and the only thing holding them in place is the position of each of these land masses.

One moves and the other is going to react—it is a simple law of physics. You who live in the greater Los Angles area live on a very mobile section of land mass. It is the eastern edge of the Pacific Plate. Go east

and cross over the San Andreas Fault line and you are on the North American Plate—a separate land mass. The coastal regions are riddled with faults because they are on the edge of a land mass, where most of the seismic and volcanic activity takes place.

Of course Los Angeles is a mass of fault lines—what else would you expect? Of course new faults are forming, because the Pacific Plate is in a new cycle of activity and movement, and as it moves past the North American Plate, stresses occur and pressure has to be released somewhere; so fractures form. These fractures are cracks in the Earth's crust and they are weakened areas which are susceptible to land-mass movement.

The San Andreas is not the "bogie man" that everyone makes it out to be. It is simply a division marker of two land masses and, when one or both of these land masses move, there is going to be activity along this boundary line.

Right now, however, your greater threat is from all those other little fault lines, such as that which stirred up activity in January in Northridge. By the way, the energy is increasing in that area and there are other little faults of all different types criss-crossing that Los Angeles basin area. It would resemble, if you were able to view below the surface, a spider web of fracture lines. They are running in all directions, intersecting with one another and bisecting the entire area into little bits and blocks.

The little shaker in January (and yes, I said LITTLE, for that is precisely what it was) was only a warning for greater things to come. There, too, it is not a matter of IF, but WHEN—and right now that WHEN could come at any moment! The type of faults there range from thrust faults, such as that which gave way in January, to strike-slip faults. Thrust faults have the capacity for greater damage, because they thrust vertically, while strike-slip faults thrust horizontally.

Once again, that thrust fault system is responsible for mountain building, for it is thrusting upward. That is how those mountains in that region came into being in the first place, and Nature is simply continuing its creative processes. Nature is not out to destroy human beings; rather, it is continually re-creating the face of the planet so that it can house life. It is only man's inability (or more accurately, refusal) to live in balance and harmony with his planet and all the rest of creation, which begets him destruction.

Some of your scientists are finally coming to the realization that the entire areas of Los Angeles, San Francisco and other such places are so riddled with active faults that the entire areas should be labeled as danger zones. Of course they should be, and for those of you who are in touch with your surroundings—your planet—it is only common sense!

Yet, in some ways, it is a giant step forward for your scientists to finally admit to the fact that they have encountered something greater than themselves. They are beginning to realize that there is nothing which they can do to predict the unpredictable, or to control the uncontrollable.

This is a giant leap for science upon your planet. All the "high-tech" gadgets, all the study, all the postulations have only led to more questions and an uneasiness of not knowing. The only way they have of discovering most of these "buried" fault lines is when one of the faults "wakes up and stretches"; and, because activity is taking place continually deep within the planet, new little cracks and fractures are always forming, for motion is ongoing, always.

If I have said it once, I have repeated myself a dozen times for you: You live on a living organism known as Planet Earth. It is alive and it is changing and re-creating itself continually, just as is everything in God's Universe. You MUST come to the realization that everything changes in the process of creation—planets, stars, every living creature, including man. Everything is a part of everything else and, therefore, all is interrelated and existing in a symbiotic relationship with everything else. It is all so very simple, yet difficult for Earth man to grasp, because most have come to the place of denial about his relationship to anything. It is the self-centered attitude of Earth mankind which shall cause him the greatest hardships.

Face it, chelas, your planet is going to change. Your job is to decide how you shall deal with that change. You have but two options and they are to either be with the current of the changes or try to fight the current and swim upstream.

If you wish to continue to live in these known areas of seismic activity and to continually be in fear of losing life or property, then that is your choice. However, blame no one but self if your fears become manifest. When the earth moves beneath you and your home collapses, then remember that you have been warned of such things and you chose to either ignore the warning or remain there, betting against the odds. Either way, it was your choice and no one forced that choice upon you.

And yes, I hear you when you say that it is risky picking up and moving somewhere you know nothing about—how shall you make a living and put a roof over your heads? Of course it is risky—LIFE IS RISKY! NO ONE EVER PROMISED IT WOULD BE A BED OF ROSES WITHOUT THORNS.

Just remember that living over a known, active fault line is also very risky. You must only decide which risk you are more willing to accept and deal with. We are here to give you the necessary information for you to make your own decisions, for without proper knowledge, you are unable to make educated decisions. Remember, knowledge is power and once you have the knowledge you have the necessary tools to perform the decision-making processes.

Your level of knowledge has, up to now, been very limited and, consequently, you did not have the proper tools to perform the job. Now, however, is another story. Once you know a thing, you are held in responsibility for the knowledge. That is, when you are in ignorance you are not accountable but, once you have moved from ignorance into the light of knowing, that which you have knowledge of, you are accountable for.

In order for you, as a species, to take the evolutionary step forward, you must come into the light of knowing and be in accountability for the knowledge which you possess. It is but another law of the Universe with which you must conform.

The experience of third-density existence which you are in at this time is the most difficult you shall experience. It is the last of what I shall refer to as purely physical existences, the fourth density expressions being somewhat of a gateway to the more etheric realms. These terms are used for your present understanding, although they are not completely in accuracy, for all expressions in the physical universe are in some way of a physical nature, yet the closer you get to returning to the Source, the less physical and more etheric are your expressions.

As you draw ever nearer to the coming transition, knowledge shall come to you in greater portions and much more rapidly, for you are beginning to transition from your present boundary of time and space. There are always boundaries of time and space in all physical expressions, yet, once again, the nearer to the Source, the less effect these physical limitations shall have upon your physical experience. It is all but another part of your overall journey from the Source, through all the physical experiences, and your return unto the Source when you have completed all that you set out originally to accomplish. You have made every choice from the very beginning and you shall continue to make those choices. It was your choice to come into the veiled experiences of your present experience and it shall be your choice to move forward.

I realize that much of this is far beyond that which you are at this time able to comprehend, yet it is important that you begin to acquire this knowledge as well, for it too is a necessary tool to you ones now.

There are many who are beginning to see the fruits of thought energy and choices, for you are standing now upon the threshold of change. Your planet is but another expression of change which is part of your overall experience and journey and lessons. We are aware of the times in which you are living and the perceived veil of confusion. We are here to bring unto you the light of the knowledge that will assist you in the removal of that veil and bring you back into remembrance.

No, you shall not always reside in the darkness of unknowing, unless that is what you choose—and there shall be some who will choose to remain in that darkness and that shall be their choice and we shall not and cannot force them otherwise. However, these ones will not be allowed to remain ignorant simply to avoid responsibility.

The messages are out there among the people and very, very few are they who have not truly heard. Our job is to spread the information to as many as will receive. Once the information has been received, the task is with those who have received the knowledge. They must then take that knowledge and make their decisions based upon all the facts, for only with all the facts is one in ability to make quality decisions.

Yes, it is all taking place at a very rapid rate now, and the perceived speed with which changes occur shall only increase. It is always the way during times of change and transition. Know that the more knowledge you receive and understand, the more you shall draw unto you; and the more knowledge you have, the better equipped you shall be to perform all the tasks that lay before you ones.

Go now, in peace and understanding, for that which you require shall be provided. Thank you for your attention. Keep the Light about you in the coming days and keep your eyes and ears open, for it is coming fast and furious. It shall be a great adventure for those who are willing to accept the challenges, but a time of woe and weeping for those who choose to stand still.

Thank you for your attention. Toniose Soltec to clear. Salu.

Editor's note: Alert! By early this Monday morning, 9/19/94, the news started leaking out about

some MAJOR volcanic eruptions at the southwest corner of the Pacific Plate. Specifically, the active volcanoes are located in Rabaul City on the northeast corner of New Britain Island in the New Guinea Islands group. THERE ARE REPORTS OF ASH PLUMES RISING TO 60,000 FEET ! The initial (less sanitized) reports were describing a series of 6 volcanoes blowing their tops, whereas the later reports had brought that number down to 2 or 3. The ash has darkened the entire area, covered the city of Rabaul in ash and mud, plus thunderstorms related to the volcanic activity are reported to be quite intense. All of this was easily visible to the astronauts in the Shuttle.

<u>VOTESCAM:</u> HOW YOUR VOTES ARE STOLEN

12/9/93 #1 HATONN

Editor's note: We are reprinting the following very timely information from the 12/14/93 CON-TACT. As election time draws near, we should not forget what we-the-people are up against in terms of manipulative election technology.

> LOU EPTON SHOW 10-21-93 GUEST: JIM COLLIER, Author of VOTESCAM

<u>REVIEW</u>

[QUOTING:]

LE: Please hear this my friends, whether you believe it or not; whether you know it or not, your vote has been stolen from you by a Cartel of Federal, National Security, Bureaucrats who include higher-ups in the Central Intelligence Agency, political party leaders, Congressmen, co-opted journalists and the owners and managers of the major establishment news media. They have decided in concert as to how America's votes are counted—who they want, by whom they are counted and how the results will be "verified" and delivered to the public.

As one of them put it not long ago: "Not a Proper Area of Inquiry". A book, a good book: *VOTESCAM, THE STEALING OF AMERICA*, that indicts Attorney General Janet "Murder" Reno—is a shocking investigation. Our guest is a co-author of this book, Mr. James M. Collier.

[Mr. Epton continues with greetings and then remarks]: We here in Clark County (Nevada) are aware of how votes are stolen. In our election last year there are more questions than you can "shake a stick at".

JC: I know because I have been talking to people who have called me from Las Vegas and I know some of what's going down—what is happening there—and it is really frightening.

I got started in 1970. It has been a 23-year investigation into how the vote is counted in the United States. I am NOT the only one who is doing this. There are newspaper men all over the country finding this same story—EVERYWHERE. I'm just the first to come out with an in-depth book on the matter. Actually the first guy to come out with a pamphlet was a newsman from the state of Washington, up near Puyallup, a man by the name of Robert Cochran, *DON'T GET PUNCHED OUT*. It was a little pamphlet on how your elections are being stolen by computer (punch cards). It was a terrific little pamphlet and people all over the country wanted that pamphlet. So we have updated all that and enlarged it into a fully-fledged book on our adventures, my brother and I, over the last 23 years.

It started originally with a book contract from the Dell Publishing Company, during the "Chicago 7" trials which would have been called *Running Through the System by Ballots, Not Bullets.* We had hoped to prove that the System would work and not lead to riots in the streets. In doing that research, however, we found that it can't. The facts are that almost no one who votes knows HOW their votes are counted. It is in an area wherein the media will not talk—ever. This is because the media is involved in rigging the vote in MUCH OF AMERICA.

LE: In other words, the media is part of the problem?

JC: The media IS the problem. The media is the most powerful entity in the world. In the U.S. it is absolutely THE MOST POWERFUL ENTITY. So, this power has corrupted. We have discovered that over a period of time they have the ability to tap into the main-frame computers in America in every county that counts the vote by computer in a central location. I suspect you people do it this way. Do you have any idea how your votes are counted there?

LE: By computer.

JC: By computer! It is probably taken from the precinct after you vote through a downtown main-frame. Right!

LE: I'll tell you the interesting thing is that any high school kid who knows computers can rig the computer.

JC: Absolutely, they can tap-in. It's that simple. There is no evidence—nothing. Anybody can do it and they know that out there because the computers in most cases are rigged IN ADVANCE. They will come out with pre-determined answers no matter what happens. It is probably happening like that in Vegas. ...Look at that city...

LE: Well, it's not a "bad" city but it is a politically corrupt city from any viewpoint.

JC: New York and Miami, as well as Cincinnati—well, we write about the corruption in those cities. And how about Chicago?

LE: Between me and thee, I'll tell you, back in 1960 I was back in Chicago covering the election and I literally watched boxes of ballots BEING THROWN AWAY. Obviously they were the ballots from what they called the bedroom communities, or suburbs of the Republican strongholds and the excuses used were absolutely ridiculous.

JC: Chicago, yes, but that's a scapegoat city that everybody knows about because they "stole" the Kennedy election, etc. But what they don't realize is that there is a pattern throughout the US and it's the same in every city. The computer operations are in a back room where the public can't get access. The League of Women Voters is in the system somehow, getting paid by the head, per hour to fiddle with the vote cards if that is what is being used. Do you have punch cards?

LE: Yes, we have punch-cards—and other—in fact, an interesting thing—after the election was done and down there were, I don't know how many, but thousands of supposedly OLD ballots—from the previous

election. Now, regulations require that they be destroyed but, for whatever reason, these were not. They were stuffed into sacks when the possibility of vote fraud was brought to the attention of the public. One of our fine people here managed to get hold of a number of those bags of ballots before the trash company picked them up. They were identical to the ballots used in our last election and there is just no way, it seems, of fighting it other than to say, "What are these ballots doing here, they're all punched, how do they figure in?"

JC: I understand that the election rigging in Las Vegas is a **MISDEMEANOR**! And NOT a criminal offense. This is what I am told from people who have formed a "People's Grand Jury" there. These people have told me that they went to the State Attorney there and were told that whatever the evidence, they "didn't want to get involved" because it is only a "misdemeanor" and they simply didn't want to become involved. Now, I don't know factually if that is true or not—other than if you have listeners who call in, you can ask them.

LE: Yes, that's true, we get a lot of calls on this subject and it wouldn't surprise me. The Attorney General for the State of Nevada is certainly part of THE problem.

[Discussion about several other subjects such as the "Fairness" Doctrine—to cause equal time to all parties in order to shut-down talk-radio.]

JC: Well, I'm an average guy who is a reporter and a business man in Miami who simply ran for election to do a book to find out what it was like to run through the election system. What I found led to this book which has now, 23 years later, come out. The whole book explains how it is done everywhere in the country. It names names of people involved in doing the actual corruption, right up through Janet Reno who should be indicted.

LE: ...On a NUMBER OF CHARGES! The only point on which I slightly disagree is that I think it is all being done by design and I don't like to sound like an off-the-wall-crazy, but there is a conspiracy going on and it is done by the Elitists and Bankers and takes us right to the Bank of England, through the Federal Reserve Bank and more.

[Radio break]

LE: We are back with Jim Collier, *VOTESCAM*. Jim, you mentioned Janet Reno, we call her "Murderer" Reno and we think she should be brought-up on a LOT of charges. She is a corrupt woman. Please tie her in, if you will, to the votescam.

JC: Alright. In 1970 when we ran against Claude Pepper in Miami, he was a Congressman. Pepper is the "father" of Social Security. He was 70-years old and his birthdate was on election day, September 8th. We ran a campaign and used no money because part of the Dell contract was that we would run as the poorest "any man" in America. We would just shake hands, walk through the Black, Jewish, etc., communities, which is Miami Beach area (Claude Pepper's area). That's where we lived. We would go shake hands, go to Churches, do all the things usually done and when we got to election day, if it was one percent or ten percent, it was alright with us. Our intent was just to know what grass roots was worth, if we did it diligently like nobody else had done it. My brother was a great speaker and he really did a terrific job.

On election night at four minutes after the polls closed (7:04 p.m.) the CBS affiliate in Miami tells us the EXACT percentages that every one of 250 candidates IS GOING TO GET. Now, remember, that is in **four minutes**. At 24 minutes after the hour the NBC affiliate does the same thing but it names exactly the amount of final numbers that those percentages represent, like 2,926 votes. Later when we got the read-outs on the television from the stations that were shown on the air, indeed, **all of THAT did happen**. They did this on the information from ONE VOTING MACHINE CALLED-IN FROM DADE COUNTY—it said.

So, now, in tracking that down we found it to be ludicrous. There is a formula for doing this that is interesting. If you get the information off of ONE machine, which they stated and testified to (definitely one machine)—how dumb. If there were ten votes, say, on that one machine for my brother Ken, any mathematician in the world would say that now you need to have a formula in the computer to multiply that forward, right? So, if Ken is A, you need times B for whatever the formula is, right? And then it equals how many votes he will get by the end of the night. That's basically the formula if you use ONE voting machine.

Well, in any A times B = C formula, you must know two out of three (A, B or C). You must know the vote before the polls are closed and the final vote and then you get the multiplier or you must know the final vote and the multiplier and then you divide it and you get how many votes the guy is getting. Either way you rig the election if you do it. They held to the "one" in this incident and that was deadly for them.

LE: How about exit polling?

JC: What a fraud. That is the biggest fraud that I have found. Have you ever met an exit poll person or do you know anyone who has ever been polled?

LE: Actually, no. Occasionally you see them shown on TV but that is as near as I have ever seen.

JC: That is what is so mysterious. I asked election supervisors around the country, "Do you know where it's being done"? And they tell me no, they have no idea who is doing it or in what precinct. I asked so I could go and watch it being done. Some people say, yeah, but when we started analyzing nationwide, the networks, right—they come on at 7:00 p.m. or 9:00 p.m. and they tell you one minute later how the vote is going to come out, right? They've "done exit polls".

Do you realize how many states would have to be calling back how many numbers to some central point, to pull that off? I also tracked down how that was done and it IS A SCAM. It isn't being done!

LE: Well, there must be samples of it somewhere...

JC: Of these exit polls? But you can't get them! I wish that all you listeners who are mad as hell and won't take it any more would call up all their friends and tell them to turn on this show right now, because I'm going to tell them stuff that is gonna curl their hair. It is REALLY going to make them angry and you shouldn't have to tell it second hand to your buddy.... Also, call the State Attorney's office 'cause I've got something to say to "whoever" that is.

[Time out for calling...]

[Resume....:]

JC: Recap: I am Jim *Collier and I wrote a book, with my brother, called VOTESCAM, THE STEAL-ING OF AMERICA,* the book that indicts Attorney General Janet Reno.... It was put out this last Summer and I am now doing the talk-radio thing because it is the only way to get a story out, in this country, that is absolutely TABU by the media.

LE: You mean that we won't read about it in the local papers?

JC: No. I am pushing all these people. We are trying every way to get on *Posner, Donahue,* Larry King, and all that but the networks themselves are involved in the stealing of this country. They are not sacro-sanct—they're not Big Brother—they would like to be and they can be crushed over this very story and that's why they are trying to hide it. They don't want to confront me. I want to face Janet Reno in a public arena over this issue.

LE: A lot of us would like to face her on a number of issues, but go on....

JC: In the back of our book, if people get it and it can be ordered through a book store or write to **Victoria House Press in New York**, there is so much that we got through the years about how the vote is counted in the United States and we will look at the end portion. In the end is how we found out that the television stations themselves, the networks, ABC, NBC, CNN, CBS, the two wire services, *The Washington Post, The New York Times* and the various other clients, belong to a "network pool". This is called "News Election Services". Do you think that the networks compete for the vote on election night?

The "Network Pool" is really that the networks DO NOT COMPETE and haven't done so since 1964. This was right after JFK was shot—within six months following the assassination, the networks took over the vote count in the United States. TOOK OVER THE VOTE COUNT. Anyone who wants to research that information can get *Election Administration Reports*. Every Election Supervisor pays about \$30 a year and they get this newsletter—strictly for Election Supervisors in America. This carried a story in April 1983 entirely detailing this. You can get it from the Library of Congress. That and also a report from the Air Force College in Colorado offers the Bibliography so that people can check where we got our information. I also did my own research.

They formed a "central board" in New York City. It's now on 34th street near 6th Ave. near the Empire State Bldg. All the supposed "exit polls" during the day which are taken are called back to Chilton Publishing in Radner, Pennsylvania. They are like a clearing house. They call back on 67 telephone lines coming in nationwide. You couldn't do one state on 67 lines, much less 50 states. In the field, largely made of representatives of the League of Women Voters, one hundred ten thousand of them on election night after the primary, run-off and final, get paid to be in the field to call back this information to Chilton in Pennsylvania. They get paid very big money to do this. They also get paid by the elections departments of big cities, probably yours too, around America, to be involved with the cleaning of the "chad" off of these cards. They get paid around \$25 per person per hour. The persons in point don't get it—it goes into the national coffers.

We have women in precincts, on video tapes, TAMPERING with the vote cards in both Miami and

Cincinnati. On video!

[END QUOTING]

This interview went on for over an hour while going into details about "how" punch cards are utilized and computers simply loaded with pre-doctored information and tallies. We have spoken of this on several prior occasions so I don't want to take any more of Dharma's time in transcribing this interview. However, AMERICA, I suggest you get this book. You will have trouble finding it because it is not allowed to be carried in any book "chain". However, it is listed and any bookstore is obligated to look it up and get it for you.

I believe the price is less than \$7.00. I don't have any further inclination to spend more time on it—but if you don't get back to an honest system of voting—the whole present process is totally worthless at best—destructive at worst.

You would have some opportunity to survive the system if you demanded to go back to paper ballots and three or four states have done exactly that just to demand some credibility.

This is EXACTLY what happened in this last major election when Clinton won while actually Perot WON. However, you will note Perot got EXACTLY THE PERCENTAGE OF VOTES PROJECTED DAYS PRIOR TO THE ELECTION—TO THE EXACT PERCENTAGE.

You as a nation of goodly people who are just too nice to think that anyone would do unto you—must wake up and look about you. Then if you can remember that less than 3% control everything about your nation and life—you will begin to see the advantage of awakening, uniting with your brother and stopping this insanity. Easy? No! But what else are you going to do? We can tell you and tell you and now even offer you PROOF and still—YOU have to get the job done or forget freedom in a Republic.

All of the outcomes are pre-entered into the central computer base which is controlled by the national networks of media TV—and you are simply told what they decided would be the outcome. You will find votes being shredded immediately, back-rooms wherein new ballots are being punched and placed in the "black boxes", etc. If you had transparent boxes and paper ballots you would at least have visual monitoring of tampering in front of everyone. YOU have no idea how those boxes are rigged inside. It beats any magician's closet anywhere. Of course, it is now such that a majority of many precincts vote "absentee" and that turns the vote it is claimed. Come on, WHO checks out the ballots? The same committees who tamper the ballots!!!

What of this overview bunch called League of Women's Voters? It is a CORPORATION funded massively by Corporations in amounts of around a million dollars per corporation. It is not what it appears to be, friends. It is THE corrupt tamperers who are ostensibly monitoring the system to keep it clean.

WHICH WAY IS UP? REFLECTIONS ON THE PLAY

We at CONTACT are well aware that our readers look to us for information that is not only timely, but not available elsewhere. We often receive material which comes to us from members or former members of the clandestine forces, as evidenced over these past few years. Much of the sharings in *CONTACT* from these sources, simply put, cannot be verified.

Beginning with George Green and his misadventures of theft and deceit [*see* chapter 9, journal #109], many of our readers became disillusioned, disappointed, and somehow less trusting. Then along came "the great warrior" Bo Gritz, whom you all remember was strongly supported by *CONTACT*'s predecessor, *THE PHOENIX LIBERATOR*. Bo's articles were generously printed, week after week, with words of encouragement and endorsement. Now, of course, it is well known that Bo speaks of 12-foot lizards and such nonsense as purchasing tickets for spaceship rides, clearly denouncing Commander Hatonn and our work. Unknowingly, Gritz surely refers to the Hatonn who went with George and Desireé Green.

The blasts against TRUTH have been unrelenting, as wave after wave has pounded upon these shores. Disillusioned readers write to us and ask the questions: "What happened to George Green?" and "What happened to Bo Gritz?" and "How can we trust in those written about in *CONTACT*?" Then Gunther Russbacher, the "super spy", enters the scene to capture the *CONTACT* audience's trust. Through nothing short of a miracle, the readers of *CONTACT*, with their letter-writing blitz, got Gunther out of the Missouri prison where he had been laid to waste. Moreover, readers continued their support while Gunther sat in an Austrian prison, awaiting trial. Letters of support and God-only-knows-how-much money were sent in trusting love by our generous readers—only to find out that they had been the subject of a con by a master of deception. Stung and pained, readers (and staff of *CONTACT* alike) walk about dazed and in shock from such treatment by one who had been given only love. Once freed, the slick Russbacher maneuvered and manipulated trusting supporter after trusting supporter, leaving those who gave, depleted. Enough! When do we say, "No more!"?

Now! No more!

Then we have Ronn Jackson. Ronn reveals (again unconfirmable) the Committee of 16, some "inside" stories of clandestine sanctions, and promises to return our nation under the Constitution—not unlike Bo and his campaign speeches. Jackson speaks of financing a parallel government and rebuilding our nation and foiling all efforts of the New World Order. Is he for real? Will he do it?

One quote comes to mind amidst all of the previous blows to the psyche and it appears within Matthew 7:15: "You will know them by their fruits."

With this in mind, after careful reflection, we have come to the following conclusion in the interest of responsible journalism: until we see fruit rather than shadows, we at CONTACT will no longer print information from this source either.

A letter has just come to us from a reader in Colorado who expresses the feelings of readers and *CON*-*TACT* staff alike, and we share it here.

[QUOTING:]

Dear Hatonn and Crew,

Everything seems to be a contradiction. If Germain conjured up the French Revolution, which was one of the most bloody and vile exercises against humanity, how can a Master Teacher go against the Laws of God and The Creation? I am told to discern. Well, I will tell you, I am very angry!! Thou shalt not kill! Why was Germain allowed under this law to start such a bloody revolution? I <u>AM CONFUSED</u> that a Master Teacher may break the Laws of God. It just doesn't seem "JUST". First George Green, then Bo Gritz, then Gunther Russbacher— and for some strange reason they all go cookoo after God and God's people's support! Now we have Ronn Jackson. I respect what Ronn is saying he is willing to do for us, but is he going to go bonkers on us like the other guys? What about Russell Herman (God bless his soul)? Are they going to kill Grandma too? How about V.K. Durham? I fear for these people's lives, because when somebody gets on the move for reclamation of this country, we lose them to physical death! I am tired of losing these people while the viperous mishpucka get away with it and laugh at us. When is this going to CHANGE?

In Light and Love, J.K.

[END OF QUOTING]

So where does this leave us? Have we been wrong in writing for and otherwise supporting these men? No, of course not, for we must work with that with which we are presented. The lessons are for each of us to discern.

Has it not been said, since biblical times, that there is nothing hidden which shall not be revealed? We must trust, always, in God's Plan. This does not mean standing idly by while another does it for us—each must take responsibility for selves with action which benefits the whole.

The United States of America is in peril, and the living document known as our *Constitution* is not only hanging by a thread, but is gasping for its final breath. Will the American people wake up one day, too late wise, only to find themselves imprisoned in a nation of barbed wire and tyranny, imposed by a One World Order and an iron fist? Will we one day peer out to a once-blue sky, through bars of steel and walls of concrete? Who will prevent such a scenario? Perhaps Ronn will. Will <u>you</u> step forward? What exactly are <u>you</u> willing to do? Are <u>you</u> willing to do it legally, through the current system of injustice? Are <u>you</u> willing to run for office or otherwise influence matters at the local, city, county, or state level to write and pass the laws which will assist in the restoration of our once-great Republic? Or rather, will you sit casually by as, first patriot leaders and then your neighbor, are carried off by men in black uniforms—for crimes unknown, perhaps just "free thinking".

How long will it take before this REPUBLIC emerges once again as a lamp unto the world, rather than as the prostitute of depraved would-be-kings? How many more trails of blood must be left before we realize

we have taken the wrong path?

These are the times that try men's souls and now is a time when courage and action, guided by God, will see us through. Keep the faith, hold the course, and get busy!

Rick Martin

<u>A FREE AND INDEPENDENT</u> <u>PRESS IS LONG DEAD</u> by John Swinton

Editor's note: The following piece of rare and candid insight comes from 1953, a solid 40 years ago now. Egads! How much <u>more</u> controlled do you think the media is now? Keep this in mind and show John Swinton's remarks to your doubting friends who wonder why you subscribe to and honor CONTACT so highly above the typical Satanic Elite-controlled news media.

We like to run this following message periodically, both as a caution to those still naive enough to think there is a free Press out there in the commercial world controlled by the Elite, and as a special kind of "thank you" to our many, many readers who so consistently support and encourage CON-TACT and, before that, THE PHOENIX LIBERATOR. We are <u>deeply</u> grateful for your constant and sincere messages of encouragement. Those often highly emotional "thank you" notes pouring into the offices every day are what give us the necessary boost to keep on keeping on.

JOHN SWINTON, THE FORMER **CHIEF OF STAFF** OF *THE NEW YORK TIMES*, CALLED BY HIS PEERS, **"THE DEAN OF HIS PROFESSION"**, WAS ASKED <u>IN 1953</u> TO GIVE A TOAST BEFORE THE NEW YORK PRESS CLUB. HE RESPONDED WITH THE FOLLOWING STATE-MENT:

"There is no such thing, at this date of the world's history, in America, as an independent Press. You know it and I know it. There is not one of you who dares to write your honest opinions, and if you did, you know beforehand that it would never appear in print.

"I am paid weekly for keeping my honest opinions out of the paper I am connected with. Others of you are paid similar salaries for similar things, and any of you who would be so foolish as to write honest opinions would be out on the streets looking for another job. If I allowed my honest opinions to appear in one issue of my paper, before twenty-four hours my occupation would be gone.

"The business of the Journalist is to destroy truth; To lie outright; To pervert; To vilify; To fawn at the feet of mammon, and to sell his country and his race for his daily bread. You know it and I know it and what folly is this toasting an independent Press? <u>We are the tools and vassals for rich men behind the</u> <u>scenes</u>. We are the jumping jacks; they pull the strings and we dance. Our talents, our possibilities and our lives are all the property of other men. We are intellectual prostitutes."

NATIVE AMERICANS' VALUES THREATENED BY IMPOSED WESTERN "MORALITY"

PAIN AND HYPOCRISY

Judeo-Christian Morality Threatens Indians' Values

[*From the* Modesto Bee *newspaper*] by Bob Bennett (the author, a South Dakota native, is a pitcher for the Modesto A's)

There are not many of us left, but our survival and destruction should be a lesson to all who claim to be moral and religious.

I took notice of, not necessarily offense to, a letter in *The Bee* from a Merced couple entitled, "Regarding morality" (July 26).

They wrote, "Why can't liberals get it right? It is not our own morality based on our own puny judgment, Christians espouse—it is God's morality as defined by Him in His Word...Judeo-Christian morality is historically what has made America great, and it is abundantly clear the further this country distances itself from God and His precepts, the closer to anarchy and social chaos we become."

In a general sense, they are correct, but under that belief there is much pain and hypocrisy.

I am a Sicangu Lakota (history calls me a Sioux) from Rapid City, S.D. I graduated from Dartmouth college with a degree in government and a minor in Native American Studies.

I play professional baseball.

I have seen many places and interacted with people from diverse backgrounds and beliefs and experienced the beauty of the great political and cultural experiment of the United States of America.

I think of what the Judeo-Christian morality has historically and contemporarily done to my people and every other tribe who thrived until the "discovery" of America a little over five centuries ago. I think of what continues today as the result of an ideology that came from across an ocean, brought by human beings and not necessarily from God.

My relatives honored Creation and its Creator through prayers, songs, dance and ceremonies. They lived off the land and hunted buffalo. The old ones saw the world with clear eyes and **knew everything was related**, while at the same time, meant to be distinct. All things were part of the sacred hoop of life and, therefore, connected to the Creator Himself.

Then a strange people trickled into the lands from the east. My ancestors welcomed them at first but communication was difficult and the trickle soon became a flood. Then the guests began to dishonor creation and the Lakota themselves by altering Mother Earth to fit their needs and by telling the Lakota that their ways were not the correct way to live.

"We have a book and the Son of God to share with you. It will help you live a righteous life," the Black robes said.

The Old Chiefs and Medicine Men replied, "We have our own ways that connect us to Wakan Tanka (the Creator) and the spirits. We are people of the land and that tells us how to live. You are visitors in our lands, so respect us."

New diseases wiped out many native people and weakened the hoop of life. Many Christians saw this as the work of God. The cavalry came, followed quickly by the railroads, the traders, the miners and more missionaries with the "Good Word". The buffalo were killed to force the nomadic Lakota into becoming sedentary.

The hunters came to kill the buffalo to make way for the railroads and the cavalry came to kill the Indians who were defending their lands and the sacred buffalo.

Lies swarmed over the country and the Indians continued to die and lose their lands and ways of life. At the same time, "white" America grew and prospered and God's Word spread.

Little children were taken away from their parents and sent to mission schools to be educated in a manner that the righteous Americans deemed proper. Their hair was cut and they were physically abused when the priests and nuns heard them speaking the "pagan language". Their sacred medicine bundles, eagle feathers and pipes were taken away.

Many never made it out of these schools alive. Those who did were made hollow because their spirit was taken from them.

The whole Lakota nation was told they could no longer hunt the buffalo, speak their language, perform their spiritual ceremonies and that they were going to be farmers and ranchers of cattle. But above all, they were going to be repaid with spiritual salvation because they were going to become Christians.

The Indians were being "saved" as the visitors became rich by fencing and plowing up the "free, uninhabited lands", building railroads, digging up the gold and silver, cutting the forests and creating their Godfearing towns.

This was progress. This was "Manifest Destiny". This was the building of a democratic and free nation. This was the destruction of millions of native people who loved Creation, their ways of life and their homelands. It was a holocaust far more deadly and evil than the one committed by Hitler's Germany.

The islands where Columbus and other "explorers" landed have no "Indians" because they were killed when they refused to become Christians.

The Narragansetts and Wampanoags, who helped the religiously persecuted Pilgrims and thus created the holiday we "celebrate" every November, were nearly exterminated by the very people they saved years before.

The Indians who fought in the Revolutionary War alongside the colonists were promised their homelands would remain forever sovereign and intact. Soon after the war's completion, they had to flee westward because their territories were being overrun by the "Americans" who suddenly could not remember any agreements made before the war.

These kinds of stories fill volumes of history books but are not taught to the nation's youth because this kind of history makes the "land of the free" and the "home of the brave" a bad, hypocritical place.

Did the Word of God and His morality tell Christians to do all of this in His name? Is this what makes America great?

This wound inflicted upon my ancestors, along with every other "Indian" people, has yet to heal. The lands of this nation are shackled by barbed wire. The buffalo were nearly sent into extinction. Many "Indians" were never taught to speak their own language or pray in the old ways because their ancestors were killed or, as some peoples' history says, converted.

Those who try to pray today in the old ways experience great difficulties because the hills and lands used in the past are now "private" property and they will be arrested for trespassing when they only want to pray in the same way as their ancestors did.

The entire history of this country is based on the destruction of thousands of distinct tribes who lived here for thousands of years before any explorer or missionary happened across this continent.

As a baseball player, I experience about 136 national anthems a season. It is not a time of joy and celebration, but a time of mourning and I sing a death song for my ancestors and relatives of today. Just think about what the imposition of another's morality has done to millions of people and the survivors of today. Just think about it.

DELTA FORCE BEING TURNED ON UNSUSPECTING AMERICANS?

9/7/94 To: Rick Martin From: Jeff Rense Re: Breaking news on the Delta Force against American citizens

Dear Rick,

First, let me thank you and Commander Hatonn for all the support and respect you have extended to me by running the ad for my book: *AIDS Exposed* [*see p. 40*], for all these weeks. It has been essential in my limited ability to get the book out to the public. I sell about 5 books a week on the average and the feedback is tremendously gratifying.

I do my own weekly radio show out of Santa Barbara, prime time Sunday evenings from 8 to 10PM on the top radio talk show station in the Tri-Counties area. As I think you know, Laurie Anteau is a close friend and said you would want to have the following transcript to consider for the CONTACT. So, today I extracted this portion and edited it. Hulet's credentials are solid and he certainly was a most interesting guest...only Linda Thompson was more intense. (She's a strange one; I'm not sure where her head is sometimes.)[*Editor's note: We agree; see p.11 of the 8/23/94* CONTACT *for more on Linda Thompson's antics.*]

At any rate, the following speaks for itself. If you can run any part of it, please be my guest. Best wishes to you and all the staff.

If you ever set up a radio show and network, I would be interested in being your host. My two hour program generates a major audience, I have only top national guests, and will send along a hard copy catalog of recent shows and an audio cassette of one for you to preview. Best Wishes,

/s/Jeff Rense

<u>Delta Force Being Turned</u> <u>On Unsuspecting Americans?</u>

In an alarming revelation, longtime political analyst, author, and intelligence insider, Craig B. Hulet charges that the Charter of the top U.S. anti-terrorist military unit known as the Delta Force has been revised to and now directs these top military fighters to be used against American citizens instead of foreign terrorists. Hulet made his remarks Sunday evening, 9/4/94, on the weekly radio program The End of the Line with Jeff Rense on KTMS in Santa Barbara. Hulet went on to describe exactly *why* this action was taken and *who* the American targets will probably be. The following is a partial, edited transcript of a small portion of the 2-hour interview with Jeff Rense and Craig Hulet:

Hulet: "I just found out only about three days ago (from) my security people...when I do lectures they areeither Special Forces or intelligence operatives...of course I'm not using names...but one of them informed me that the Delta Force...the technical name of which is the "International Secret Army" out of Langley; but our Delta Force, as you would know it by that name, are our counter-terrorist unit—they are the real cowboys...these are the most rabid, vicious killers trained by our system to protect Americans in case of a terrorist attack. Well, they are right now changing, internally, their Charter to operate *domestically* against our own citizens.

Rense: "You've got that confirmed?"

Hulet: "Absolutely. And it's not going to be in the press because it's considered classified information...because it is considered an active policy of national security and they don't have to tell the American people this. Now, my own question is, 'Who are they going to use these guys on?' We have no major drug problem in this country. We have a problem but its been on the *decline* for ten years and everybody now knows that. We've been *lied* to.

"So, it's not about 'drug lords', it's not about the Mafia, it's not about gangsterism with the 'Bloods' and the 'Crips'. Like I said, violent crime has dropped off 33% in the last 11 or 12 years by the Justice Department's own admission. Drug usage (according to) the 'Drug Czar's' office is off sharply, down drastically: 2.8 million fewer people use cocaine than ever before. So, who are they going to use the Delta Force on?

"The only thing I can think of, from speculating, is (that it is) going to be those military and active duty police officers, or retired military, retired Special Forces, Airborne, retired Rangers that own semi-automatic rifles that they are not going to register. They are *not* going to. One-third of all the semi-automatic assault rifles are owned by cops and active duty military personnel and another one-third are owned by retired police and military personnel. Elmer Fudd, the duck hunter, doesn't own an AK-47, folks. Returned *Special Forces* guys own AK-47's.

Rense: "You are describing a pretty black scene of internecine warfare right here in our own country."

Hulet: "Well, I've interviewed everybody I know in the military and they have told me that 100% of their unit owns semi-automatic assault rifles...and 80% of them have flat out said they will not turn them in, they will not register them, they will not do any of this.

Rense: "And in your opinion that's why the Delta Force's Charter is being rewritten."

Hulet: "I can't imagine why any other element in our society is such a 'magnificent' threat to national security. The reason they are going to eliminate these guns from society is because...the people who own them are the ones I just described. It isn't your Elmer Fudd, NRA members. It is highly qualified police, hostage rescue personnel, military personnel, retired or active duty. They're the ones who own these guns. They are going to disarm the American people tactically of the most sophisticated and dangerous weapons in the citizens' possession because of what is going to come down over the next 20 years: economically, a debit card system, a national identification system, DNA fingerprinting...and they are expecting the American people in groups, not maybe a giant revolution, but in groups, they're expecting more Wacos and more

riots. That's why they've changed the mission of Federal Emergency Management (FEMA) to include *civil* disturbances.

"If you look at the 'Crime Bill' it makes perfect sense why they are banning these weapons by looking at the new *death* penalty. Let me give you a short list: If you commit a crime, any of these following crimes, and someone dies, you'll get the death penalty. The crimes consist of: destruction of aircraft or aircraft facilities; destruction of motor vehicles or motor vehicle facilities; violence at international airports; gathering or delivering defense information; transportation of explosives in interstate commerce for certain purposes; destruction of government property by explosives; destruction of property affecting interstate commerce by explosives; killing or attempting to kill diplomats, prisoners; kidnapping; hostage taking; violence against a President or Presidential staff; wrecking trains; blowing up maritime platforms and oil platforms; use of weapons of mass destruction; treason; aircraft piracy; and then finally, the most 'important' one: violence against members of Congress, Cabinet Officers, or Supreme Court Justices.

"These are crimes *not* currently taking place. These are crimes not of terrorism...these are crimes of *revolution*. Look at this 'Crime Bill' and understand (what is really going on): they are disarming the American people on the one hand; they are giving FEMA powers to quell civil disturbances using (the) military; they are allowing to have private (national) 'emergencies' called at the *cabinet* level; and now after they have banned the semi-automatic assault weapons, almost 200 of them, they want to give you the death penalty if you act in any of these crimes I've just described...which are not being committed today.

"Now, it doesn't take a genius to figure out that the *government* has figured out that we have an unhappy populace out here...and they are going to become *more* unhappy in the future because of NAFTA, GATT, the banking system, a debit card, the DNA fingerprinting, the National Identification Registry that is coming on line. When all these things come down, some elements in society, the Left, Right, the militant environmentalist, patriot groups, identify movements, racists, crackpots, Christian fundamentalists, Mormons, tax protesters...are going to be *angry*. So, the government is anticipating that and preparing now for what *they* think will be revolutionary activity in the future. And I think they might be right.

"I think it's a damn shame that it's come to this. And rather than change the system, they are going to let the system go the way it is going to go, and then deal *violently* with the unhappy citizenry. This is not Democracy, this isn't a free Republic, and contrary to Bill Clinton's concept, this is *not* how the Founding Fathers wanted to see it operate."

For an audio cassette copy of the complete 2-hour interview with Craig Hulet and Jeff Rense, send \$9.95 + \$3.00 S/H to: *The End of the Line*, Suite 112, 160 N. Fairview, Goleta, CA 93117. For a free catalog of other recent shows featuring Dr. Robert Strecker, Rodney Stich, Linda Thompson, UFO expert Michael Lindemann, etc., send an SASE to the above address.

TWINKLE, TWINKLE, LITTLE STAR by Kali 9/5/94

Editor's note: Kali, who is Geophysicist Commander Soltec's scribe (see p.87), was sitting out on her Arizona back porch looking at the stars one night a few weeks ago and began reflecting on matters many of us contemplate in quiet moments of self-assessment. This seemed to be a good spot to share her inspired thoughts with you—between Commander Hatonn's warm lesson for young Kenneth R. and the powerful example of courage-in-action that follows in Hawaii's sover-eignty miracle.

I sit in wonder as I look into the nighttime sky and view all the splendor and magnificence. In the air, there is the first hint of the change of the seasons. Soon the hot and sunny days will be gone and in their place, crisp, cool mornings and nights and the beauty of the wintertime skies.

The "Seven Sisters" of the Pleiades Constellation are visible once again after their summer vacation. As I look heavenward, they are like sparkling sapphires that stand out in the dark sky. They are as old friends, returned again for their seasonal visit and I greet them warmly and long to again return home.

Then, gazing upon the strobing star-ships, a childhood memory of many days long past comes into mind and I recite the rhyme once more: "Twinkle, twinkle, little star, how I wonder where you are, up above the world so high, like a diamond in the sky."

It still carries with it a magical tone of wonderment, but now even more so, for I truly *DO* wonder where they might be and what they might be seeing from their vantage point, way up there among the stars and planets. Is there more peace and love and contentment there? I certainly hope so.

All the beauty of the sky at night, such splendor to behold, and I wonder: *HOW* was it all brought forth from nothingness? Then I hear the answer: By thoughts of Love—a Love so great that it could not be contained and it exploded outward, ever growing, ever expanding.

Then I begin to realize that I am a part of that expansion, of that love so great that it could not be contained and, moreover, that within me is a fragment of that *SAME* love and the *SAME* thoughts which brought all forth!

And then: If I be a part of the whole, then I too must have the *SAME* ability to be filled to such an overflowing that I could not contain it and that I, too, would have to release it and send it on its way, allowing it to ever grow and expand!

So then: if that be the case, why do I sit here, waiting for my ship to come in? Why do I not go out there and find that ship? What's stopping me? Who can stop a thought of love so great? The answer: only me, only me. I am the only one standing in my own way because, out of fear and unbelief, I stand still—waiting, waiting, waiting.

But what if Columbus had waited because he was afraid; or if Emmanuel had run the other way because he was fearful; or what if Thomas Jefferson had doubted his beliefs? What did these souls possess that I do not? Were they any more a part of the whole than I? What made these ones so great?

Could it be courage? And where does courage come from? How do I get some? What makes one man develop it and not another? Is there some magical formula that I just don't know about? Where did they find it? Was it there all the time, waiting for them to call upon it? Is it within me, waiting, waiting.

Perhaps great men aren't born courageous; perhaps they become courageous simply because they have a passion so great, a love-thought so great that it cannot be contained within them and it explodes forth, growing and expanding.

Is that how it all is in this universe? Do we lack the passion of men of days gone by, or have we taken passion and turned it into a lust—a lust for the physical pleasures?

Have we forgotten what life is really all about and why we are here? Have we been seduced, just as those in the days of Sodom & Gomorrah were seduced, by the physical lusts?

And if that be the case, then what is our destiny? What is our legacy? Are we destined for the same end, the same judgment as were those two cities? What an utter waste of the magnificence of the civilization that could be.

So I have to ask myself whether I shall stand proud before the Almighty for the part I have played, or shall I hang my head in shame? Will I be told: "Well done, my good and faithful servant!" Or shall I hear: "Go to the left, for I knew you not."

I must ask myself, with each thought I think, each word I speak, each thing that I do: "Am I benefiting civilization, *OR* am I benefiting anti-civilization?"

There is so much of my past that I am not proud of, yet the Creator still continues to bestow blessing after blessing upon me, even when I feel the most unworthy. And if that is not Love, then I do not know what is. Then comes the reminder: "To whom much is given, much is required."

With this knowledge, no longer am I able to sit back and wait for another to do it, for I am responsible for all that I have thought, all that I have spoken and all that I have done. I—and I alone—shall be held accountable for *MY* life.

And if I err, then I must have the courage to admit the error; and if I should hurt another, then I must have the courage to ask their forgiveness.

And, above all, I must have the courage to stand up for that which I believe in and allow the passion to grow beyond containment, regardless of the ridicule that will come.

Then and only then will I truly be able to say that I am a part of the overall plan of Creation and that I have played my role to the best of my ability—and will be able to stand before the Creator with my head up and hear the words, "Well done, my good and faithful servant!"

It is amazing, the thoughts that come from "nowhere" when we simply get quiet for a few moments, put aside all the worries and cares of our lives, and sit open-eyed in wonderment beneath a starry night sky and sing, "Twinkle, twinkle little star...."

HAWAII SOVEREIGNTY UPDATE AND DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE

THE ROLE OF ISLE ROYALTY (View by two authors)

WEREN'T DEMOCRATIC by Thurston Twigg-Smith

Maybe we need a "truth czar" in the continuing discussion of sovereignty. There often seems to be a disregard for facts but I guess that's normal in opinion pieces—the writers are trying to make a point, or in the case of the many UH students we heard from this summer, score a credit or two in their momentary immersion in Hawaiian studies.

Opinions themselves are properly subjective. It is the statements made in support of them that are troublesome—and that should be factual.

A case in point is the piece August 23 by Rowena Akana. She says the Hawaiians were, at the time of the overthrow, "told we could no longer speak our language, dance, sing, or follow the teachings of our kupuna." Where in the world did this come from? Not true!

She continues that: "virtually five Caucasian leaders were responsible for trying to blow out the candle of the Hawaiian culture." That's a new one, too. The Committee of 13 has shrunk to 5? Or does she mean an early version of the Big 5?

She suggests Hawaiians need to go back "as far as the overthrow and longer still" to find the answer to "why sovereignty?" She states that sovereignty will occur when "the native Hawaiian people"…"create a government that provides for democratic representation."

Better not go too far back, then, because the Hawaiian kingdom and its monarchs did not offer much in the way of democratic representation! In fact, go back far enough and you'll find Kamechameha I taking over the Islands without asking anyone's permission or representation at all.

Those who led the overthrow did so to achieve democratic representation as opposed to determination by the will of some monarch. And the first and immediate beneficiaries were the Hawaiians among the people of Hawaii. With their preponderance of the new vote, they elected Hawaiian leader Robert Wilcox and later Prince Kuhio to Congress.

Hawaiian culture, by the way, is a noble and separate cause and it is not correct to say that anyone connected with the overthrow sought to blow out that candle. The revolutionists merely wanted the

government to make proper use of the talents of its people and the worth of its lands for the benefit of all of the residents of Hawaii, not just the monarchy and its friends.

They didn't even want to be the successor leaders themselves, and in fact, no member of the overthrow group took a position in the new government nor gained financially from the change in government. Nor stole any land.

Thurston Twigg-Smith is chairman of the board of The Honolulu Advertiser *and a descendant of a leader of the overthrow.*

SUSTAINED CULTURE by Kaha'i Topolinski

Everyone around us—from the exiled alii to commoner, prince, princess, our cousins in foreign lands, former royalists, the educated and uneducated Hawaiian—all of us—have lost, to some degree, his or her place and reason for being.

The reason: The demise of our hereditary institutions.

Hawaiian sovereignty, through heavily debated in the political arena, is also a story about refugees.

It is about human beings unanchored; blinded by a fractured past and immobilized by uncertainty fueled by traitors who hastened the destruction of our hereditary monarchy.

Above all, it is the tale of a family in crisis—chiefs and commoners alike—confronted with mounting problems which ancient laws and traditions could not effectively comprehend.

Indeed, the Hawaiian family was decimated in the Hawaiian revolution and was then told by pseudopolitical prophets to accept as authentic, today's mangled, unstable and recriminatory version of its entire existence.

The answer to the ever-elusive riddle of Hawaiian sovereignty does not only lie in the multitude of fractured political Hawaiian castes, but in the essence and heart of the Hawaiian royal family, where pride, pretense and appearance were overruled by compassion, patience and unpublished good works.

Members of the royal Family are the legal heirs, as we are, of a great political tragedy which happened only 100 years ago, and which must be made right.

Contrary to popular belief, the Hawaiian monarchy was a viable political structure. Freedom and individual human rights, which we cherish so much today, were the cornerstone of its creation long before modern government took up the cause.

And because of this, Hawaiian rulers became targets of ridicule, harassment and international intrigue with ever-encroaching political philosophies foreign to Hawaiian thinking.

In their effort to sway Hawaiians from their own traditions and innate political structure, none was more vociferous than the Hawaiian malcontent along with his American counterpart who waved the banner of a new brand of political ideology, such as jingoism, American superiority, and Manifest Destiny.

Thus, the flower of Hawaiian government under the monarchy was never given a fair and unbiased chance to blossom in its the fullness.

John R. Kaha'i Topalinski is a teacher of history of Mililani High School and a descendant of royalists Hon. John Adams, Kuakini Cummins, who fought to preserve the Hawaiian monarchy.

APFN'S NEW "FAXX-BOXX" FEATURE

MILITIA OF MONTANA INTEL REPORT

THE PIPELINE

by Michael Maholy

Within this manuscript, I will describe to you just how the drugs and weapons were sold. The weapons would go south to countries in both South and Central America, as I told you in the previous issues of CONTACT, and the drugs would be brought back to the United States for distribution.

The year was 1984. I was enjoying a long awaited vacation that was to be spent as R & R (rest and relaxation). I had flown home to my property in the heart of the Ozark Mountains, in north-central Arkansas, just a short six miles from the Clinton's "Whitewater" land development investment property, or should I call it their drop-off L-Z. My land was only a small ten acres on a beautiful mountain lake, with an airstrip, a lot of trees, and a complete line of military defense perimeter detection devices, computers, FAX machine and other little goodies that were necessary in my line of work which was Naval Intelligence (O.N.I.) and C.I.A. field agent at that time.

To picture this region, the area is a well known retirement mecca for many people from the northern states. The area is not what you would call industrialized, nor is it heavily populated. If viewed from the air, one would see the many isolated dirt landing strips that seem to be in the middle of nowhere. If a person knew anything about flying they could see that these airstrips are only a tank-of-fuel for many of the planes used to smuggle drugs from the Gulf Coast States. It is also an area of low-income unless you are one of the many corrupt, deceiving, lying, elected politicians of the state, or a chicken baron, or even many of the people who, until Bill Clinton or that 100%-on-your-money law firm down in Little Rock, you know, the one where it seems that most of the people who have ever worked with that bunch. Well, they happen to die of a so-called "high rate of lead poison"; there are eight or nine that I can think of, but later on for that. I had just walked into my remote cabin when a FAX came in from Langley. It read: VICTOR-TANGO-DELTA-SIERRA...OAKLEAF...0300 HRS. ASSIST...PROVIDE SECURITY...PROCEED AS OR-DERED TO SALT-MARSH-...1833326.741—END CODE. I knew then that my fishing for the many trout that dominated the river beneath my home was over for the next few days.

I would then call my handler at Langley, confirm the message and prepare for my other job, the dark side of my career, drug and weapons smuggling. As usual, instead of shredding any evidence of any data received I would hastily burn the FAX message then start to pack my tools of the trade. Let's see, personal hygiene bag, Ruger, 15 shot 9MM automatic pistol, boot knife, cellular phone, five very potent marijuana joints, and my lucky Mako shark tooth, oh, and three bottles of bug repellent. The airstrip was just a short 300 yards behind my back door. At 3:00 a.m. a twin-engine Beechcraft airplane would land and pick me up. The pilot was a well trained, well seasoned smuggler, who was taught by one of the best, if not the best, drug-smuggling pilot who ever worked these covert drug runs for the C.I.A.; that's right, George Bush's C.I.A. The pilot in question was Barry Seal. My host for the three days of nail-biting drug smuggling would be Barry's step-brother, Hebert (Abear). Hebert had worked as a drug and weapons smuggler for almost six years when I met him through one of General Manuel Noriega's bodyguards, a member of the General's PEGASUS UNIT, which amounted to no more than a bunch of mercenaries, paid by the General to do his killing. I met Hebert down in Colon, Panama, in 1982 while I was monitoring

cable traffic for Naval Intelligence.

I would now see the lights of the small twin-engine Beech preparing to land. Perfect timing. In fact, I would double check the time with amazement. The engines would never stop running, I would board, Hebert would give me a thumbs-up sign, turn the craft into the wind, and take off once again. Once inside the tiny cockpit, Hebert would start to brief me on our destination and mission. The first stop would only take us forty-five minutes to reach. A small regional airport in northwest Arkansas called Springdale, AR. The plan was to drop off one of the four dark-green military duffel bags that were in the seats directly behind me. The drop would be made to three armed men who were employed by the world's largest producer of poultry, Don Tyson. Tyson, at that time, was well into becoming the "Chicken King" and controlled the tiny town of Springdale, AR, and half the people in it. It was said that if you belonged to the Tyson group, you had the best credit in that part of the state, but if you could find yourself out of business overnight.

It was around 0400 hours when we landed at the Springdale, Arkansas Regional Airport, still dark for a mid-summer night. After making a perfect soft landing, Hebert and myself slowly taxied the plane toward the north end of the airport, all the time I'm viewing the surrounding area with special night vision optics that were previously loaded in the plane, along with an M-16 automatic rifle. Hebert would then tell me to "lock and load" the M-16. I asked him why, and he replied, "Just in case these chicken farmers get any out-of-the-ordinary ideas, they could make more in two minutes than they could make in a lifetime." Well, while still moving down the runway, I did as told, and also removed one of the small military transmitters that were placed in each duffel bag as a safety precaution in case the load was ditched, it could then be tracked and found. These transmitters would fit into the palm of your hand, cost about three thousand dollars each, and were supplied by the C.I.A. They were the same transmitters the C.I.A. used to extract their personnel from hot-areas, hostile positions and so on.

We finally spotted the truck in which the men who were to receive the drugs were parked. Hebert would pull out a flashlight from under his seat, and flash a pre-arranged signal to the men. In a minute, the men were parked next to the still plane, however, the engines would never stop running. Two of the men approached the craft and gave Hebert a visual look at themselves; Hebert told me to give the men one of the duffel bags, the one that had a red tag on it. In that bag were 50 kilos of 90% pure cocaine, street value in the millions of dollars. After that, the men handed me a small flight bag, the kind a commercial airline provides on trans-continental flights. The man who handed it to me, a bodyguard of Don Tyson's, was an ex-bouncer from a nightclub in Hot Springs, AR and also a very good friend of the Clintons, and also a relative of a man named Dan Lasserder, also of Hot Springs, AR. The man then told us that the rest of the money would be picked up at our next stop and would be given to us by a then Arkansas state policeman who also worked as D.E.A. Hebert knew this man well as this piece of scum who called himself a lawman, who would sell his mother out for a pocket full of twenties, a whore and a nose full of cocaine. This man's name was Allen Swint. This lawman, a man who has sent several people to prison for the same thing he was doing, later went on to become one of the state of Arkansas' most informed enforcement officers, and would have strong ties with the Dixie Mafia. Ironically, this man would live to be one of the major players and the person who was to double-cross me in the end. If this man would have carried out his orders the night of the raid on my home, I would have been killed as planned. To this day, if any of you could have seen the fear in this man's eyes the night they came to secure me, arrest me, and kill me, it was a look of fear for himself. Swint paused that fateful night, a pause that any other time would have caused him to be terminated himself. More about that later, I promise!

After the drugs traded hands, we were once again airborne with a heading of straight south to the famous Mena Airport, in Mena, AR. The flight, a short thirty minutes away. As we climbed into the still dark sky, Hebert would ask me to get the bottle of German Brandy out from a bag in the back seat. I knew better than to even question Hebert's drinking while flying. Besides, my nerves could handle a swallow or two themselves. Before I knew it, the fifth of one-hundred proof brandy was nearly gone. I was feeling the effects as well as the rush a person's body gets when your adrenalin is pumping to every part of your body. I had to relax a little, stay calm, cool and very colleted. After all, we were now seeing the ground lights of Mena.

Once again, another smooth landing. As we approached the hangar where Mr. D.E.A. himself would meet us, Hebert once again told me to be on the ready; he said, "You can't even trust this son-of-a-bitch". I sensed a mutual distrust for this man Swint. In Swint's short but very profitable career he had killed two or three young pot smokers over what amounted to maybe a hundred dollars. Swint was a tall red-haired man, looked like he should have come from eastern Kentucky, or western Virginia, but was from the Bubba state; in fact, was Roger Clinton's best friend and protector. Are you starting to see the connection here?

Swint came toward the plane. Hebert told me that if this wasn't the company's dope, (the C.I.A.'s), that he himself would cap (terminate) the lawman then, take the money and kick-back down in Cancun, Mexico for a month, maybe two. Believe me, this Cajun would do the cop in a heart-beat, so once again I had to take his statement and treat it as if it could happen that way at any second. The lawman asked us if we had any problems with the flight or the transaction up in Springdale. We would tell him no, only to tell him that we were told that he would give us the rest of the money upon delivery of the three remaining bags of cocaine. Swint confirmed that he indeed had the rest of the money from the first load, plus the money for the rest of the poison white powder. Hebert then told me to remove the tiny transmitters once again, when the D.E.A. agent said, "What are you two up to, what is that?" Hebert told him that it was a safety precaution, not to worry. But the lawman seemed to be quite upset with that answer, stating that he was worried, and he "don't play games with anyone". The tension was building up between the three of us. The brandy we had just drank on the flight over was kicking in, giving us a false sense of courage that I knew from past experiences could cause a person to lose control, cause an undue fear, and I knew that fear could cause a person to hesitate and that hesitation could cause a person's worst fears to come true. That was the first time that I would see that look in the D.E.A. agent's eyes; the second time would be when he came to kill me, the night of my arrest in Little Rock, some seven years later.

We completed the deal. Swint made the remark, "Do I have to count the bags of dope?" Hebert replied, "I don't think you hillbillies know how to count that high, not enough toes and fingers." Fuel for a smoldering fire. The plane was refueled and soon we would be flying into a new morning sun. As we leveled off at about 12,000 feet it was time for me to light up one of the five marijuana joints that I had brought along. After passing the joint to Hebert a few times, the euphoria and any tensions had left our bodies. We would decide what we were going to do next. The next stop would be Morgan City, LA. Morgan City was a smugglers' nest ever since the days of the pirates. In fact, the city was named after Morgan the pirate. After the two-hour flight from Mena, AR to Morgan City, LA, we landed the plane and it was parked in a nice brand new hangar where the plane's numbers would be repainted and serviced. Now we would climb into a four-wheel-drive pickup truck, and head for another point on the map that was one of the most remote places in the lower part of the United States, the Henderson Swamp, in the Achafalaya River Delta. A swamp of about 300,000 acres of nothing but cypress trees, alligators and crawfish traps. Oh, and about 1,000 different types of biting insects and 4 types of poisonous snakes.

The road ended at a shack that sold live bait, ice cold beer and boiled crawfish. Hebert knew these people well. In the past he would have helped many of them pay for their boats, motors, crawfish and turtle traps. He was a sort of modern day Robin Hood to these strange people of the swamp. You did not ask a lot of questions around this place; it is said that a nosey human makes the best crawfish bait around and they always needed bait!

The name of the little gin-mill was called Cajun's Reef. Once inside, you could sense that this mecca was indeed a well known retreat for many of the swampers. The air inside was stale, filled with smoke and smells of a mixture of what seemed like every kind of dead fish in the world. The juke-box was playing a song that was sung in French-Cajun. The owner quickly greeted us with an ice cold picture of beer, and a bowl of boiled eggs. In the corner of the dimly lit oasis, sat a whore who looked as though she had been "rode hard and put up wet". Hebert said that we better eat a good meal before we leave into the swamp. I was hungry so I agreed to about 5 pounds of the boiled crayfish; I had to, as the alligator tail still had the skin attached to it and the frog legs were still very well alive and croaking outside in a frog cage.

We ate until we could swallow no more. There is not much to a crawfish tail, so you have to consume plenty of them and by the time you get finished sucking the spicy juices from the brain of the little crustacean you are ready to take off the bib that they supply you with and lay down for 30 minutes. At least that's what the woman in the corner hoped for. We had a lot of work to do, not to mention a long ride in an airboat through the murky waters of the swamp. Hebert walked over to the proprietor of the small but lucrative business and handed him a one-hundred dollar bill, gave him a hug and told him something in French, then turned to me and said, "Last chance to get lucky", looking in the whore's direction with a big shit-eating grin. I told him that we were losing daylight, but hell, it was only 9:00 a.m. and we in fact had a long hot swampy summer's day ahead of us.

Behind the shack he dubbed as a 5-star restaurant, we met another man who not only looked swamp wise, but as though he had been many places on this planet. I have a sixth sense about these types of men because I have had to deal with many of them in the past. This man was also French in background, built like a stud. This man was very quiet and he had been trained well. This man was a trained commando, a mercenary. He was just one of the 12 men that the C.I.A. had obtained and trained at one of 5 training camps they have in the U.S. for covert para-military operations. He was smart, and smart I admire. Smart ass, I don't admire. I sensed that we would get along just fine. The airboat, a long narrow boat, with high seats painted by the military in a flat-non glare paint was loaded with some food and a couple kegs of beer. Now was the time to apply the bug repellent and a lot of it. The pilot of the boat, the Frenchman, got on the radio and called the LZ and started the engine. Passing yet another bottle of beer to me, Hebert began to tell me stories of how he and his step-brother became wealthy, as well as healthy, in this same neck of the swamp. All kinds of stories. I was gaining respect for this C.I.A. drug pilot as we went along. "It shouldn't take long," Hebert told me, "maybe thirty minutes," depending on the route the pilot chose that

day. You see, whenever they enter the swamp and go to their operations command center a different route must be chosen to avoid any detection. Along the route, there would be several different check points, though I never have seen another living soul.

About twenty minutes into the eerie ride, the boat pilot would stop the boat next to a smaller flat-bottom boat. Hebert and myself along with the two-hundred pounds of supplies would be transfered to the smaller craft, that was propelled by a much smaller 5-horse-power outboard motor. Again the tiny boat would have a flat camouflage military paint coating. We would now begin to snake our way through the very dense forest of the swamp. Every so many yards were floating islands of mossy peat, along with trees, big native cypress. The ground underneath these hammocks seemed to tremble as the wake of our small boat passed. Through an unmarked trail through the dense, almost impenetrable swamp floor, we finally arrived at our mission headquarters. We were only 10 yards away from the floating houseboat before I saw it. Great time and effort was taken to preserve the seclusion of this command operations mobil unit. As we pulled up next to the floating mini-fortress two heavily armed guards (C.I.A. operatives and smugglers), greeted us and welcomed us aboard.

Once inside, the undercover boat resembled the inside of the President's *Air Force I* jet, and had every gadget that was used by the C.I.A., D.E.A., Naval Operations, Recon detachments and Special Forces. The seven-member team of all of the above combined agencies' men had been trained for a specific job. Hell, there even was an ex-Marine Doctor on board who doubled as a cook! This floating unit had the capability to spot any incoming intruders for hundreds of miles out to sea. It looked like S.A.C. [*Strategic Air Command*] Headquarters on a smaller scale. Well, the beer was opened once again, but not for me this time. It was high noon, I was tired, and time to give my body a well-needed rest. The A.C. inside the quarters was cool and comfortable and sleep would come easy. The coming of night would promise another 12 hours of receiving hundreds of pounds of cocaine, that was destined to many different remote landing strips, a lot of them in Arkansas.

I awoke at 2100 hours, that's 9:00 p.m. civilian time. Tonight's meal would consist of fried frog legs, turtle soup (a gumbo really) and beer. After the fine cuisine, we were all to have a briefing session. The plan was nothing new, in fact had taken place many, many times before. Planes would start arriving over prearranged drop points in the swamp at 2400 hours, midnight. The planes would fly over the swamp, reduce their airspeed to around 80 knots, looking on the radar screens like helicopters coming in off of the Gulf's thousands of offshore oil rigs. They would drop their payloads with very precise accuracy, complete with the expensive transmitters that were placed in each water-tight canister. Each container would hold 100 kilos. There were only to be four planes coming in that night. A total of five containers were dropped from each plane, so that meant that there was almost 5,000 pounds of pure Bolivian uncut cocaine brought into the U.S. that night. This was all set up and planned by the then C.I.A. agency director George Bush, and his pal, the smiling Marine Lt. Col. Oliver North. Now, I'm just wondering if ol' Olley told all of this to the state of Virginia, where he is now running for a Senate seat?

The operation took almost six hours to complete. I was very surprised at how these men performed their tasks. I mean these men were all professionals. They were trained to work, sleep, and eat in the swamps of the world; hell, some of them later told me they even had sex in the swamp before! I was really not too fond of the swamp, although I grew to respect it quickly. I once had contracted the deadly Malaria in the jungles of South America, and any one who has ever had that sickness, hates mosquitoes with a passion!

Well we finally got back to our floating home away from home. There was another FAX message waiting for me. The code was different this time, as well as it's always different. The message read: "Merry Christmas—It should be snowing—Proceed to SARDINE-DEPOT (which really meant Sabine, TEXAS, the PORT), then the message was terminated by our code: VICTOR-TANGO-DELTA-SIERRA...OAKLEAF...1833326.741-OUT.. The numbers on the end along with the code names meant that the message was to me. It would not be long now before I was on my way to Sabine, Texas, to the Port where I was to complete the second phase of this operation. I was still tired, so I lay down for two hours.

It was now daylight once again. The second day of my journey had begun with a severe thunderstorm moving in fast. Hebert and I were on our way out of the swamp. The drugs would be placed on a helicopter, or should I say three helicopters that would fly in under the cover of the storm. The team relies on freak weather patterns to operate. After all, the night belongs to C.I.A. drug smugglers, why not the fierce winds and rain. Hebert told me that when the hurricane season starts every summer, they move twice the amounts.

Well, before I knew it, we were back at Cajun's Reef. It was as if nothing had changed, except maybe the whore's dress. We had no time for lengthy speeches; a quick instant breakfast (a bottle of cold beer again), another one-hundred dollar bill and we were on our merry way back to Morgan City. I thought, "Wow, what an expensive bottle of beer," but I laughed it off; you see, in the past 30 hours I had flown 700 miles, boated another 50 swampy miles, got bit some 30 or 50 times by my ol' arch enemies the mosquitoes but I had earned \$100,000, payable in cash upon my arrival in Sabine Pass.

One thing you must understand, that being a covert operator for the C.I.A. as well as Naval Intelligence meant that you did what you were told to do. If not, and you were too far along in their secret games, if you knew too much, you had to pay the price. In most cases, there were many ways in to their schemes, but there was only one way to get out. You remember the crawfish bait we talked about before, well, that or maybe a Vince Foster, or a Debbie Ferguson trip would be planned for you. You know, you have a great life going for yourself, and then you excuse yourself from the dinner table, go outside, hop in your car and blow out your brains! Then you come back to life, throw the gun away so it's never found, then you die again. If you believe that bull-hockey, well I've got some ocean front property in Arizona for sale, real cheap.

No, folks, being an agent is not what you see in the movies; well maybe for the Washington crowd, but it was not for an illegal drug smuggler. Oh, I guess I had seen my share of fancy hotels, been to three or four cocktail parties with the big brass, ate some great foods, but I'm just a practical person down at the heart. Though there were times when greed, lust and power dominated my soul, I am glad that I found the real me. I have never taken a human life, probably the worst sin to commit. There was once a time when I admit that I might have done whatever I had to do, but the fact remains that I never did.

Back in Morgan City, LA, we would prepare to board a Bell Helicopter, which would take Hebert and myself to an oil rig that was owned by the George Bush Family, called ZAPATA OIL. The rig would be the ZAPATA "7" a semi-submersible oil rig that was being refabricated and fitted in the port. But what was it being refitted with? After all, the rig was only 2 years old; surely the salt water had not eaten at her pipes, or bottom. The rig was being fitted to transport thousands of small arms and ammunitions overseas to both

Central and South American countries, where it would be there that the weapons would be traded for drugs.

Hebert did not pilot the Bell Helicopter. Another pilot who was a helicopter pilot in Vietnam, an exmercerary, was our host. He told us to sit back and enjoy the one-hour flight. Perfect time for that third joint I had stuffed in my bootknife pouch. Visions of all that money were on my mind, lust, greed, you name it. What was I going to spend all the money on? Well, I had some time to let my tired mind wonder. Next stop would provide the payoff; hope I would not need the 9 MM Ruger in my shoulder holster So I'll stop here until next time, when I will take you, the readers of CONTACT, into the bowels of an oil rig. Thanks again for reading and believing, and for your continued support.

Your man on the inside,

/s/ (Capt.) Michael Maholy

THE CONSTITUTION PARTY

We, the founders of the Constitution Party, hold that our federal government has consistently violated the Constitution of the United States. The Founding Fathers designed the U.S. Government to serve us—the people. It was not designed so that we the people would serve government. We no longer wish to see Americans dependent upon or enslaved by government. Generations of Republican and Democratic administrations have made it abundantly clear that they are incapable of managing the nation's affairs competently, justly, or legally. The CP is dedicated to ensuring the unalienable right of every U.S. citizen to Life, Liberty, Property and the Pursuit of Happiness by limiting the role of government in our lives.

The CP holds that no one has the right to dictate to anyone else how to live. It further believes that no one holds the higher moral authority to compel anyone else to behave in a particular way. The CP maintains that each individual has the right to behave according to his or her self-determined moral principles, provided the pursuit of these principles causes no physical harm to any other person or his property. The CP believes that if there is no victim there is no crime. The CP believes that no entity, including a majority of voters or citizens, may take away or violate the rights of an individual.

Accordingly, the CP calls for a reordering of national priorities. We aim to <u>restore</u> the rights of individual Americans. We aim to create a truly free country where people will learn to be responsible for their own welfare. Upon achieving this goal, productivity will flower, causing business to prosper, thereby creating an atmosphere of abundance, tolerance, and compassion. Therefore, the CP offers the following platform to ensure our rights and those of our children:

1. Under no circumstance does government have the power to violate the rights of an individual.

2. Government does not have the right to legislate morality. Adult consensual behavior ("victimless crimes") such as those involving any sexual activity, gambling, drug use, or assisted suicide are a matter of individual adult morality and not a matter of criminal law. The traditional organizations for discussion and persuasion regarding such issues include churches, synagogues, youth clubs, chambers of commerce, and other local social organizations.

3. As an adult, you are free to do whatever you choose with your own person or property, provided you do not physically harm the person or property of another. People who physically harm others are to be forcibly segregated from the rest of society by government. It is society, not the criminal, that should be shown leniency.

4. The CP advocates a strong local police presence for violent crime. By eliminating victimless crimes, police will be able to focus on violent crimes, making police infinitely more effective. The prison system, currently overburdened, will have ample space to house violent criminals for the full course of their prison therms. The streets will be safe, the country's legal and prison systems will unclog, and vast amounts of money that add to the budget deficit will be saved. Isn't this a better idea?

Nevertheless, a government that must break the law in order to enforce the law is not a government worth having. Therefore, law enforcement officers and agencies must be above reproach with regard to due process of law, personal privacy, freedom from unreasonable search and seizures, and all the other fundamental constitutional guarantees. The CP believes that any government agent or employee who does not abide by, or who violates, the Constitution should face mandatory criminal penalties.

The CP believes that all judges must be directed to inform every jury of its legal sovereignty under the *Constitution* in that it may find any defendant not guilty if it judges the law, even law upheld by the Supreme Court, to be defective, unwarranted, unconstitutional, or wrongly applied.

5. Regarding abortion, government has no right making laws dictating to a woman what to do with her body. At the same time, it has no right to take money from some citizens to fund abortions for others.

6. Each individual adult has the right to keep and bear arms, providing the owner has never been convicted of a crime involving the use of a weapon.

7. The CP advocates the maintenance of the strongest national defense force in the world. The CP does not advocate military interference in the affairs of other nations.

8. The CP believes that individuals have the right to keep all money or property **they have earned**, to provide for themselves and their families. The CP believes it is not government's business to know how much money you earn, where your money is kept, or to require you to keep records on its behalf. Accordingly, it believes that government has no right to use any of its agencies to intimidate people into revealing how much property, including money, they have or earn, with threats of jail terms and property seizures. This stance requires the elimination of the Internal Revenue Service and all taxes based on wages, earnings, income, and inheritances.

The elimination of these taxes would cause business to skyrocket, create millions of jobs, and significantly reduce unemployment and welfare lines. It would also reduce crime. All these benefits would be felt by the American people.

DISREGARD OF OUR NATIONAL INTEREST

CHAPTER 15

HAITI AND HIGH CRIMES

CHAPTER 16

THE MISSING 13th AMENDMENT

CHAPTER 17

FREEWAY UNIVERSITY NEWS REPORT

CHAPTER 18

MORE ON NEARBY SOVIET ARMAMENTS

CHAPTER 19

FEMA POLICE SHOULDER PATCH

Editor's note: We recently received the following note and photo-picture which, even though of poor quality, we are electing to share with you. Looks like FEMA is well on their way toward total, socialistic control of we-the-people, emergency or not! The note reads:

Last week, Aaron Russo faxed the enclosed copy to me. I immediately called and asked him about it and was informed that a fellow in Denver made the copy from an actual patch. It looks like FEMA is going to have some policing duties.

Mr. Justice Jackson, in The Supreme Court in the American System of Government, p. 70:

"[N]o local agency which is subject to federal investigation, inspection and discipline is a free agency. I cannot say that our country could have no central police without becoming totalitarian, but I can say with great conviction that it cannot become totalitarian without a centralized national police." Found at 294 F2d 165 (1961). — L. B.

FEMA, FED POLICE PATCHES ARE RED FLAGS

Nora's Research Corner Extra!

Editor's note: The following are Nora's comments on the symbols on the Federal Police Patches compared to the Great Seal of the United States depicted on the \$1 Federal Reserve Note.

UNITED STATES POLICE: FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA) PATCH

The eagle, the arrows, and the olive branch shown on this patch appear to be attempted representations from the Great Seal of the United States-although the clarity of the images cannot be portrayed successfully with embroidered fabric, and some details are omitted. For example, how many arrows are in the eagle's claw on the sinister side of the "Coat of Arms"? There should be 13, representing the original 13 States. Also, the olive branch on the dexter (other) side looks more like a bush, and the 13 olives are not apparent. Further, whoever prepared the "insignia" has used a different number of tail-feathers on the eagle; and the shield, or escutcheon, while showing the 13 stripes, does not show the "chief" across the top, which denotes Congress, uniting the 13 original States in the "Great Seal". While it would be difficult to obtain more details with the materials used, it is also possible that the intent was to show that "Congress" has **no** jurisdiction over FEMA.

The significance in the changed number of tail feathers is not known to me; you will note there are nine, all in a row, on the eagle shown on the dollar bill. The tail-feathers on the "patch" are in several groups, there are at least 13 feathers, but it is impossible to be more specific.

One might think that 13 tail feathers would be in harmony with the original 13 States, as would be 13 arrows and 13 olives, etc. This is not true, according to their placement and lack of historical use-the 13 States began the "United States", they did not come at the "end", if you will allow me to say so. Further, the number of feathers actually is not clear. Does it matter? Perhaps not-depending upon the intent of those who determined its design and those who approved the design. Let's just say that this is a "different" kind of "eagle". Could it mean that it represents some other nation besides the United States? Perhaps; eagles have been used as symbols in the nations of Germany, Rome, Mexico and Russia, although not generally displayed as in the "Great Seal of the United States". So-what else could it mean? A change of character of the United States? Yes-I think so. It means a change of character at the end of this cycle, in my opinion. Why do I say this? For one, the implementation of FEMA is a change from a so-called "democracy" to a "dictatorship"-the change has been slowly made away from our Republic under the Constitution. Further, this change was prophesied in the original text of the Book of Revelation, Chapter 8, verse 13. I found the correct translation of this text in the translation from the Eastern Text, of the Peshitta (Holy Bible) from Aramaic by George Lamsa. The King James Version of the Bible has translated this "Eagle" as an "Angel". The Greek Interlinear Translation uses the word "eagle", but not the full translation of the verse. The Aramaic Version follows:

> "And I beheld and heard an EAGLE HAVING A RED TAILAS IF IT WERE BLOOD, flying through the midst of heaven, saying with a loud voice, Woe, Woe, Woe to those who dwell on the Earth" (emphasis mine-Nora)

Jesus (Eshoo in Aramaic) spoke Aramaic.

According to Hatonn, that **Eagle with the Red Tail** is the symbol of the nation of the U.S. of A. with its Communist/Bolshevik/Zionist controllers at the time of the fulfillment of John's vision in the *Book of Revelation*. (An article titled *"The Eagle with the Red Tail" is in my book, The Garden of Aton.*) I would say a United States controlled by the Red Bolsheviks, who are in control of Russia, and who are Khazarian "Jews"/Zionists, would surely represent a change of character for the U.S. of A.

The unfurled scroll in the seal of the United States contains the words "E Pluribus Unum", 13 letters meaning "One from Many". The eagle has this scroll in its beak at the middle of it, so that each end flows from either side of the beak. The eagle on the patch holds the **end** of a scroll, and the message is: "PAC AC BELLO MEDITA", as near as I can read it from the lack of clarity inherent in the patch itself. "Pac ac bello medita" could be translated according to the Latin language, in several ways. "Pac" means Peace. "Ac" is a combining form which probably means "and" here. "Bello" means war. While I did not find the actual word, Medita, in my Latin dictionary, it falls within the family of words which mean: to mediate, to interfere, to be in the middle, etc. Therefore, "FEMA" is an agency to be used "in the middle of" both peace and war, according to its motto.

The triangle on a dark field, enclosed in a circle above the head of the eagle is a symbol claimed by many groups. The fact that it is in the place of the Crest (according to heraldry) and replaces that which

symbolized "God's glory in the clouds" from the "Great Seal", is very significant. (Please see the picture of the seal on the \$1 bill.)

This nation is the only nation established as "one nation under God". Our founding fathers used the Bible in determining the form the Great Seal would take, and the symbols to be used. The "Glory (Rays) in the clouds" represented God's presence and protection over israel (meaning God's people). The "Glory" (God) is replaced on the "patch" by a triangle in a circle.

What does the equilateral triangle within a circle mean? It can mean just about whatever it is you want it to mean. Look at the Logo on CONTACT. Here you have the circle, the triangle, the lightning sign, etc. One can focus on "who uses what" symbol, etc., but it does not mean the symbol itself represents what different groups intend, except to them, or that it only represents "them". Obviously, the triangle is an important part of God's Universe, as is the circle and the lightning-any arithmetician, scientist, astronomer, etc., will not hesitate to tell you so. God's Universe came <u>before</u> man and his symbols. Man just copies what is here-he is not yet a "creator". Man has always hoped to be empowered by symbols-starting with the totems, etc., of ancient peoples. This does not mean one should disregard all symbols, for they are used as an identification by many groups, and are meaningful to them.

Since the color of the triangle cannot be determined from our copy of the "patch", I cannot speak to any significance from this aspect. A circle, in general, means "whole", "completion", "all encompassing", etc. The triangle meant fire to many early persons who did not have a written language. It also has meant "tent", and numerous other things.

In todays world, the equilateral triangle has become a meaningful symbol to the Cabalists, Zionists and to Masons, among others. Masonry uses the symbol of the pyramid, and also the equilateral triangle with the Hebrew letter Yod in it, and/or a Hebrew word or letter "G" signifying "God" or "Geometry" in some of its rituals. They also use the six-pointed star, now a declared symbol of the State of Israel, which is two interlaced, equilateral triangles, forming the six points of the star, etc. I will not go into the symbolism of the six-pointed star, as I understand another person will be commenting on this symbol, except I would like you to note that the "constellation" of thirteen five-pointed stars (pentagrams) encircled by the "clouds and the Glory" on the "Great Seal" are assembled in the form of a six-pointed star (hexagram). The number of stars could actually represent, to both Masons and Israelis, the "thirteen" tribes of Israel, for example (now including the Khazars), or some other combination. It could also be a representation of Solomon's Sealwhich he used to "control the demons while building the temple", according to Masonic ritual and Hebrew legends. Solomon's Seal was said to show both the five and the six-pointed star. Here on the "Great Seal of the United States" there is a representation which could be of a similar form as Solomon's Seal. The original drawing of the Great Seal by Charles Thompson, Secretary of Congress, and submitted to congress on 6/20/1782 for their approval, showed a design which had a "constellation" of 13 stars on the crest, which were **not** assembled in the order of a six-pointed star. The Congress approved the design. The report of this approval regarding the "Crest" states: "Over the head of the Eagle which appears above the Escutcheon, a Glory Or, breaking through a cloud, proper and surrounding 13 stars forming a Constellation, Argent, on an Azure field." (Comment: Or = metal gold; Glory = Rays; Argent = silver or white; Azure = blue; proper = applicable to all natural things.) (Ref.: Our Great Seal, The Symbol of Our *Heritage & Our Destiny.*)

The constellation of stars was modified by a William Barton, an authority on Heraldry and the son of Rev. Thomas Barton, Rector of St. James Episcopal Church of Philadelphia. Thompson, according to the book *The Great Seal*, etc., was given the final decision on a modification of all previous designs. The "constellation" was assembled into the six-pointed star design on the Great Die of 1782. (Die is the form of the seal used to make the impression on important government documents.) The six-pointed star design has been retained since that time, although several versions of the die of the seal have been cut, some in order to bring the seal into greater harmony with the Congressional charge. One wonders about this, since the six-pointed star design is **not** natural or "proper" according to the Congressional record and charge.

Whether or not the "pyramid within the circle" is intended to be the "logo of the Illuminati", which is the question of the person faxing the copies of the patches to us, I could not say, except that the "Illuminati" took over most of Masonry at the time of Adam Weishaupt in the late 18th Century about the same time our nation was formed, and the "triangle" is a symbol of Masonry. Its form on the \$1 Federal Reserve note is in the shape of a pyramid with the "all-seeing eye" as its capstone, enclosed in a circle.

Here again, I have to say that, for example, the symbol of the "all-seeing eye" has been interpreted to mean very many things, and to be associated with God as often as it is associated with Satan/Lucifer. In fact, Lucifer is "god" to many-therefore-a great deal depends on the intent of those who made and use the symbol. The fact that the "eye" is surrounded by "Glory" on the \$1 bill, used to mean that "God" was the "capstone" of this United States (13 states at the time and 13 layers of masonry in the pyramid). However, as with any symbol, it has been used by others to suit their own schemes. To Masons, God is the "Great Architect of the Universe". This title has, in all sincerity meant "God the Creator" to most Masons, I feel sure. However, in the Masonic degrees starting with Royal Arch, the name of this "Great Architect of the Universe" is given as "Jahbulon", which, according to Stephen Knight, in his book, The Brotherhood, is a coined word intended to include the names Jahweh, Baal and Osiris in its meaning. The Royal Arch Masons hold the triangle encompassing the all-seeing eye to be the symbol of "The Grand Architect of the Universe". Their altar is triangular, as are their "Jewels", etc. The solar triangle of the Egyptians was a symbol of Osiris, Isis, and Orus (AKA Horus) and was inscribed with the mystic motto, "I am all that was, that is and that shall be." (Ref.: Our Great Seal, The Symbol of Our Heritage & Our Destiny, p. 59.) Therefore, it appears that one cannot assume that "God" means the same to all Masons. In fact, the further "up the ladder" a candidate goes in Masonry, the closer to the "religion" of the "Jews" and of "Isis and Osiris". Baal was worshipped as a "fertility god" in the Middle East, and Osiris as a god of the dead in Egypt. There were very many Baals, all with a slightly different name. In fact, the triangle, the Obelisk, and the sphere, of Egyptian symbology are sexual images. Isn't it interesting that, according to the Cabalists (part of the Hebrew tradition) the two interlaced triangles of the six-pointed star represents "Generation". It is a sexual symbol, and prominent at marriages (Ref.: Encyclopedia Judaica). Further, according to some researchers, the letter "G" in the triangle of "higher" Masonic degrees means "Generation". All of the above, of course, is symbolic of God's Creation, and I am not judging. Nevertheless, according to the teachings of Jesus (Eshoo), the sexual aspect of "human" was intended to be kept in its proper, meaningful, and private place.

Also according to the book *Our Great Seal, The symbol of Our Heritage & Our Destiny*, "Henry A. Wallace (former Vice-President) has taken credit for making the suggestion which eventually led to the inclusion of the Reverse Seal on the dollar bill. Wallace later recorded the sequence of events as follows:"

[Quoting:]

In 1934 when I was Sec. of Agriculture I was waiting in the outer office of Secretary Hull and as I waited I amused myself by picking up a State Department publication which was on a stand there entitled, "The History of the Seal of the United States." Turning to page 53 I noted the colored reproduction of the reverse side of the seal. The Latin phrase Novus Ordo Seclorum impressed me as meaning the New Deal of the Ages. Therefore I took the publication to President Roosevelt and suggested a coin be put out with the obverse and reverse sides of the Seal. Roosevelt, as he looked at [the] colored reproduction of the Seal was first struck with the representation of the "All-Seeing Eye", a Masonic representation of The Great Architect of the Universe. Next he was impressed with the idea that the foundation for the new order of the ages had been laid in 1776 but that it would be completed only under the eye of the Great Architect. Roosevelt, like myself, was a 32nd degree Mason. He suggested that the Seal be put out on the dollar bill rather than a coin and took the matter up with the Secretary of the Treasury. When the first draft came back from the Treasury the obverse side was on the left of the bill as is heraldic practice. Roosevelt insisted that the order be reversed so that the phrase "of the United States" would be under the obverse side of the Seal. I believe he was also responsible for introducing the word "Great" in the phrase "The Great Seal" as it is found under the reverse side of the Seal on the left of our dollar bills. Roosevelt was a great stickler for details and loved playing with them, no matter whether it involved the architecture of a house, a post office or a dollar bill.

[END OF QUOTING]

It is interesting that, according to Ronn Jackson, Henry Wallace was a member of that "Committee of 16". So was Eleanor Roosevelt [*FDR's wife*].

The motto, "Annuit Coeptis" means "He hath prospered our undertakings (or beginnings)". (Ref.: *Our Great Seal The Symbol of Our Heritage & Our Destiny*.)

POLICE: FEDERAL PROTECTIVE SERVICE PATCH

There is not much to add regarding the symbols in this second patch. The eagle is more true to the "Great Seal of the United States" within the limitations of the material of which it is composed. The crest shows the "Glory in the clouds" encompassing a constellation of "stars". However, their shape and number are very uncertain. One person suggested there were five stars above the eagle's head. This is very possible, but not clear from the copy available to us. However, if this is the intent, the five stars might pertain to the region from which the patch originated-I am only speculating. According to FEMA, and the New World Order, America is divided into 10 Regions. Much of the administration for these regions is already in place. Five stars could represent, for example, the 5th Region of the United States, or even the 5th Region of the New World Order. However, without more information I can only guess.

The eagle is enclosed in two circles which are surrounded by what appears to be olive branches-a symbol of "peace", as in "peace keeping forces". The letters GSA are printed at the base of the image. These letters may represent General Service Agency (or Army?) for example. I am not familiar with the various

"agencies" of the "New World Order" and therefore cannot be specific. There are a number of articles in the <u>PHOENIX JOURNALS</u> regarding FEMA and the many functions that come under its jurisdiction in case of an "emergency", for those who would like to explore the matter further.

Bibliography: *Our Great Seal, The Symbol of Our Heritage & Our Destiny*, by E. Raymond Capt, M.A., A.I.A., F.S.A. Scot., Archaeological Inst. of America, Pub., Artisan Sales, P.O. Box 1497, Thousand Oaks, CA 91360; *Holy Bible, The Peshitta, From the Ancient Eastern Text*, translated from Aramaic into English by George M. Lamsa, Pub., A.J. Holman Co., (1933),

WHAT IS A REPUBLIC?

If the United States was founded as a democracy, then why doesn't that word appear even once in the Declaration of Independence, the Constitution, the Bill of Rights, the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag, or the constitutions of any of the fifty states? In contrast, the *United States Constitution* guarantees each state a **Republican** form of government, and it is to the **Republic** for which our flag stands that we pledge our allegiance.

In 1928, the U.S. War Department used a training manual for the Armed Forces which included this startling definition of democracy:

Government of the masses.

Authority derived through mass meeting or any other form of "direct" expression.

Results in mobocracy.

Attitude toward property is communistic—negating property rights.

Attitude toward law is that the will of the majority shall regulate, whether it be based upon deliberation or governed by passion, prejudice and impulse, without restraint or regard to consequences.

In contrast, that same training manual included the definition of **republic** found in historian Harry Attwood's book, **Our Republic:**

A **republic** is a form of government under a constitution which provides for the election of (1) an **executive** and (2) a **legislative body**, who, working together in a representative capacity, have all the power of appointment, all power of legislation, all power to raise revenues and appropriate expenditures, and are required to create (3) a **judiciary** to pass upon the justice and legality of their governmental acts and to recognize (4) certain inherent **individual** rights.

Take away any one or more of those four elements and you are drifting into autocracy. Add one or more to those four elements and you are drifting into democracy.

The executive, legislative, and judicial branches referred to in the training manual comprise yet another distinguishing characteristic of a true republic: **a system of checks and balances**. If Congress passes a law that is subsequently vetoed by the President, it may then override the President's veto by a two-thirds vote of both Houses; the Supreme Court can strike down the law as unconstitutional; the congress can impeach and remove from office the Supreme Court Justices or the President; and the President may sign a treaty that the Senate refuses to ratify. This system of checks and balances is an invaluable protection against dictatorship, preventing any one branch of Government from obtaining too much power. It is also

very undemocratic!

Former Senator Margaret Chase Smith (R.-Maine) once summarized the crucial differences between a **republic** and a democracy in these words:

The basic distinction between democracy and **republic** is in the degree of majority rule. Majority rule is unrestricted in a democracy while it is restricted in a **republic**. The Bill of Rights part of our Constitution places definite limitations on the power of the representatives of the people. They are denied the power to abridge our freedom of speech, right of assembly, press, trial by jury, against unreasonable searches and seizures, and other individual rights—regardless of how much the majority might be opposed to such individual rights. Under a pure or true democracy, there is no protection of such individual rights against the rule of the majority.

Democracy actually means unrestricted majority rule that our *Constitution* so carefully prohibits....

A **republic** is a truly representative Government. It provides representation for the minority as well as the majority. It places individual freedom and rights above majority rule. If we were really a political democracy, instead of the **republic** we are, the will of the majority would habitually ride roughshod over the will of the minority. A republic creates and develops tolerance that acts as a bulwark against tyranny by the majority.

The United States was founded as a **republic**—not a democracy—for very sound reasons, and our future as a free nation depends on the extent to which we can keep it that way.

MORE ON THE *REFOUNDING AMENDMENT* by Don Fotheringham

Editor's note: This was an APFN fax to the CONTACT offices.

If I understand the Refounding Amendment and the plan of its authors, it proposes to wipe out all 16 amendments adopted since passage of the Bill of Rights and replace them with a single new Eleventh Amendment proposed by the authors.

Their intent, no doubt honorable, is to get America back to the original Constitution and get rid of the corrupting effect of most of the later amendments.

If their intent is to keep the original *Constitution* intact, then their own procedure and their proposed structure must conform to all articles of the original *Constitution*. They can hardly invent a new process for change without violating Article V which provides for two methods, but not theirs. Their proposal also violates other provisions of the original *Constitution*, but for now let us look only at their procedure.

Apparently they want to skip the usual drafting and deliberating that goes into structural changes, presuming (I presume) that that process would protect the nation from the dangers of a con-con [Constitutional Convention]. At this point, that is correct. That is, since it has been drafted by non-delegates of the people, it has no force and thus it poses no danger.

But if it attains the serious attention of at least two-thirds of the states, then it will have the force of the sovereignty of the people, and that is where the danger lies. There is no chance on Earth that the Refounding Amendment will be ratified even in one state verbatim, that is without amendment, or rewording, or challenge. Even I, having only read it once, have found basic errors. Multiply that by 7,400 state legislators and the input of millions of other people, and what do you have? You have the power of the whole body of the people engaged in the process of changing our constitutional structure. That is where the danger lies.

It makes no difference where they are seated. They will have in their hands a proposal for sweeping revisions of our organic law, and whether they speak collectively or through delegates, they are engaged in the process of a con-con. Not one amendment has ever passed without several years of deliberation. But it takes little imagination to see that the repeal of all 16 amendments will lead to exhaustive debate.

Although the authors have provided only for ratification of a new Eleventh Amendment (not negotiation, coordination, or deliberation), Americans are going to argue, debate, and amend the measure before passing it. There may be differing terms that describe this action, but the essence is the same: The sovereign powers inherent in a free people will be united and in force to alter their form of government. It will not be a simple up and down (take it or leave it) vote on the proposed Refounding Amendment. Even if the process begins one state at a time, no federal revisions can possibly be made without extensive coordination. Regardless of the geography or the form it takes, such action will constitute a massive national con-con.

This is the force we fear. This is why we do not advocate any structural changes at all at this point in our history. The JBS works with great diligence to protect the Constitution by keeping it out of the hands of an

immoral and irresponsible people. Our enemy is not among those who are trying to restore constitutional government, but it [*the concern*] is the ignorance of the American people. They cannot handle their sovereign powers. They cannot even handle 535 members of Congress. They must not be permitted to act in any way to make structural changes.

Our concern here is not based on the possibility that 38 (three-fourths) of the states will adopt this. (Only 26 have the initiative process and many of those restrict initiative petitions to "advisory only," not as law.) We are far more concerned over the philosophy imbedded in the proposal.

Although the [*Refounding Amendment's*] author's intent is to get back to the Constitution, the process and the proposal take away from it. The initiative process is a tool of demagoguery. It is inconsistent with republican government. Our Founders carefully avoided making any provision for a plebiscite because they understood how easily majorities throughout history have been manipulated. This essential understanding is manifest throughout the Federalist Papers and in Madison's notes taken at the Convention of 1787. The Convention was not a public affair; it was held in secret. They went out of their way to avoid a majority opinion on their procedures and proposals. Even when ready for ratification, they mandated that special state conventions made up of delegates be empaneled. They did not survey the masses, ask for a referendum, or seek a majority vote on it. There was great wisdom in this. We regard the initiative and referendum process as dangerous and we would certainly not codify it within the *U.S. Constitution*.

The great task of getting America back under the Constitution can be achieved only when Americans understand how far they have strayed from the principles established by our founders on behalf of the whole body of the people.

KOSHER FOOD TAX by Edward Tear

Again last Christmas, a court injunction was granted forbidding the lighting of windows of Los Angeles Hall in the form of a cross. This is now the third year in a row that this 30 year-old custom has been banned. The reason? The Los Angeles Jewish community finds the custom "offensive" since it associates the LA administration with a religion other than their own.

However, only a few months previously, a court action brought by a Los Angeles patriot, Mr. Maurice Palmer, failed in the federal court to ban the kosher food tax, which is a levy collected by most food manufacturers from the largely Christian public, and paid over to the Jews.

Most people are completely unaware that they are paying this levy at all, and even find it hard to believe that the practice is allowed to go on. Yet the evidence is there, on every grocery shelf throughout the land. A careful scrutinizing of an ordinary family's stock of groceries will reveal that at least 50% of the items bear witness that the tax has been charged and collected, in the form of a tiny "K" or "U" on the packaging. Sometimes the symbols will be well hidden, and care should be taken not to confuse them with "C" (meaning copyright) and "R" (meaning registered) which are harmless.

But the K means kosher and the U stands for Union of Orthodox Jewish Congregations of America. the K and the U are the copyrighted marks of, respectively, the Committee for the furtherance of *Torah* Observation also known as Kosher Overseers Association or Kov K for short, and the aforementioned UOJCA. When either symbol appears, this means that a rabbi has been paid by the manufacturer to bless the product, before he can authorize them to print his "hechser" on the packaging. The fee is no small change, either. The Coca-Cola Company in Indianapolis was sued by a rabbi not so long ago for \$30,000 in unpaid blessing fees. By multiplying that by all the products by all the cities, by all the states, and by all the rabbis, produces a total which must represent a multi-million dollar rip-off of the American consumer.

THEY DON'T WANT TO TALK ABOUT IT

When challenged on the subject, the food manufacturers generally try to avoid the subject. When the Jews are challenged, they come up with all sorts of excuses, as to why they should be allowed to collect this ridiculous tax from the host community.

They will say that Jewish consumers need to know which products are acceptable under the strict Jewish dietary laws. Yet the Ks and Us appear on products where the dietary laws are not relevant, such as Coca-Cola, Ajax cleanser, Sanka coffee, even anti-freeze, and even on products which contain pork, such as Coney Island frankfurters. In any case, there are only some 250,000 really Orthodox Jews in this country, so why should the majority of the population have to pay extra to pander to their religious laws?

Secondly, the Jews will often maintain that the rabbi inspects the premises of the manufacturer for cleanli-

ness, and that this is a worthwhile service and should be compensated for. Yet even a cursory examination of the Jewish press will reveal that kosher food firms are no more concerned about hygiene than anyone else, as reports of hygiene law prosecutions are not uncommon. Besides, it is the responsibility of the state to supervise food cleanliness, not some self-appointed religious zealot.

CHRISTIAN CRITICS ARE SMEARED

How on Earth do they get away with this daylight robbery? The answer is that the blessing agencies wield enormous power, on account of the Jewish predominance in the retail and distribution trades, where noncompliance will quickly bring about a distribution boycott; in the media where letters and articles critical of the racket are rapidly suppressed; and in government, where the slightest criticism is regarded as taboo, on account of the "anti-Semitic" smear liable to be thrown. Some years ago a Jewish food manufacturer in New York tried to avoid payment of the tax and still keep their Jewish customers. They printed the words "kosher-style" on their label. But the two (normally competing) blessing agencies joined forces for once and were quickly able to have a bill passed by the state legislature insisting that any wording which even hints that the product is suitable for observant Jews must also include the wording, in large letters: "Non-Kosher" Thus, even if the ingredients of the product comply with Jewish religious ordinances, the item is still not regarded as truly "kosher" until it has been blessed by a rabbi for a fat fee.

In a lengthy article on the subject in the Jewish Post of July 30, 1976, the head of the Kov K agency, Rabbi Harvey Sentor, admitted that his firm was a "profit-making" concern, and that they "solicited about 99% of the firms" to buy their blessing, and thus buy the right to anoint their label with the copyrighted "K." Sentor also admitted that he was a part-time mathematics professor at a private university in New Jersey, and had only been in the "certification business" (*sic*) a few years.

The rival "U faction" belonging to the UOJCA, refuses to appear at the same seminars as Kov K, on account of Kov K's avarice. Yet the UOJCA extracts exactly the same levy as Kov K, and in exactly the same way. The only difference is that the profits after paying the rabbis' wages are not channelled into the owners' pockets as profits, but go towards subsidizing Jewish community ventures and Zionist charities in Israel.

Since the courts are so keen on the principle of "separation of church and state" as shown in the LA City Hall case, it would be interesting to test for equivalent enthusiasm by bringing a suit against the U.S. Government prohibiting them from allowing Food Stamps to be used in the purchase of kosher-blessed food.

THE BILL OF RIGHTS

Article I. Congress shall make no law respecting an establishment of religion, or prohibiting the free exercise thereof; or abridging the freedom of speech, or of the press; or the right of the people peaceably to assembly, and to petition the Government for a redress of grievances.

Article II. A well-regulated militia, being necessary to the security of a free state, the right of the people to keep and bear arms, shall not be infringed.

Article III. No soldier shall, in time of peace be quartered in any house, without the consent of the owner, nor in time of war, but in manner to be prescribed by law.

Article IV. The right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and effects against unreasonable search and seizures, shall not be violated, and no warrants shall issue, but upon probable cause, supported by oath or affirmation, and particularly describing the place to be searched, and the persons or things to be seized.

Article V. No person shall be held to answer for a capital, or otherwise infamous crime, unless on a presentment or indictment of a Grand Jury, except in cases arising in the land or naval forces, or in the militia, when in actual service in time of war or public danger; nor shall any person be subject for the same offense to be twice put in jeopardy of life or limb; nor shall be compelled in any criminal case to be a witness against himself, nor be deprived of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law; nor shall private property be taken for public use, without just compensation.

Article VI. In all criminal prosecutions the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy and public trial, by an impartial jury of the State and district wherein the crime shall have been committed, which district shall have been previously ascertained by law, and to be informed of the nature and cause of the accusation; to be confronted with the witnesses against him; to have compulsory process for obtaining witnesses in his favor, and to have the assistance of counsel for this defense.

Article VII. In suits at common law, where the value in controversy shall exceed twenty dollars, the right of trial by jury shall be preserved, and no fact tried by a jury shall be otherwise re-examined in any court of the United States, than according to the rules of the common law.

Article VIII. Excessive bail shall not be required, nor excessive fines imposed, nor cruel and unusual punishments inflicted.

Article IX. The enumeration in the *Constitution*, of certain rights, shall not be construed to deny or disparage others retained by the people.

Article X. The powers not delegated to the United States by the *Constitution*, nor prohibited by it to the States, are reserved to the States respectively, or to the people.

RENO TARGETS THOSE WHO MAY FIGHT AGAINST TOTALITARIANISM

Exclusive to the SPOTLIGHT by Mike Blair

From the 9/19/94 SPOTLIGHT Newspaper

The *SPOTLIGHT* has learned that Attorney General Janet Reno has sent special instructions to the U.S. attorneys in 12 states to investigate patriotic and militia groups, particularly targeting their leaders.

The states reportedly eyed by Reno for "special treatment" are Alabama, Arkansas, Florida, Georgia, Idaho, Indiana, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, Montana, South Carolina and Tennessee.

The *SPOTLIGHT* has received reports that patriotic group leaders in some of the 12 states have been harassed by low flying U.S. Army helicopters hovering over their homes and black-garbed intruders have been appearing late around their premises, particularly if they reside in rural areas.

It is virtually impossible to pin down the incidents since they usually occur at night when it is difficult to photograph the intrusions and harassments.

There have also been reports that Army National Guard units are working with state and local police in joint task force operations.

SPOTLIGHT sources in Louisiana have reported joint operations between Army National Guard units and the state police.

RUSSIAN VISIT

Particularly heavy activity was reported in and around Bossier City, Louisiana, while a Russian Bear bomber and Candid inflight refueling tanker made a visit in late August to nearby Barksdale Air Force Base in northwestern Louisiana (SPOTLIGHT, Sept. 12).

In Bossier City, sources photographed a National Guard Bell OH-58 Kiowa observation helicopter at the Louisiana State Police headquarters and indicated that some type of joint operation was underway.

There was heavy helicopter activity around Barksdale during the visit of the Russian aircraft, which departed and returned to their base near Moscow on August 26.

Meanwhile, in southern Louisiana, another SPOTLIGHT source observed and photographed a joint ac-

tivity involving two National Guard OH-58 Kiowas in Miraux, a suburb of New Orleans.

As part of the 1994 Crime Bill enacted late last month by Congress and signed into law by President Bill Clinton, provision is made for rural crime task forces to be established in each judicial district of the nation.

Operating under the attorney general, various federal agencies will be directed to work with state and local law enforcement agencies in establishing the rural crime task forces, which have a mandate under the new law to confiscate property of citizens whom they have under investigation.

The power to confiscate the property is given them based merely on the accusations that someone is under investigation, regardless of whether the subjects of the probes are under arrest, indictment or convicted of a crime in a court of law.

Civil libertarians and critics of the new anti-crime law view the task forces as grossly excessive power being placed in the hands of state and local law enforcement officials, backed and funded by federal law enforcement agencies, including the FBI, Immigration and Naturalization Service, Drug Enforcement Administration, Customs Service, etc.

In effect, through the rural crime task forces, federal law enforcement agencies will be able to buy their way into a partnership with local law enforcement to enforce local and state laws.

The only recourse a citizen has if his property is confiscated by such a task force is to fight the issue in court, which would be nearly impossible to do effectively after the person's property and assets have been seized.

Gun owners are fearful of legislation included in the Crime Bill banning 19 semi-automatic—so-called "assault rifles"—by name and various copycat models, as well as vague language in the bill that can be applied to hundreds of other firearms.

Making matters worse, Rep. Charles Schumer (D.-N.Y.), the main booster of the anti-gun part of the Crime Bill in the House of Representatives, already has in the works the next generation of legislation attacking the right of the American people to keep and bear arms.

The new Schumer legislation calls for a ban on so-called "sniper rifles," which, according to the proposed law, includes any rifle larger than a .22 caliber rimfire, with a barrel longer than 16 inches and equipped with a telescopic sight. This would include virtually any big game hunting rifle in America that is equipped with a scope.

Index

A

A FREE AND INDEPENDENT PRess is Long Dead by John Swinton 49 A.T.F. [personnel] are 100% agents of a foreign pri 21, 22, 23, 24, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 34, 35, 36, 37, 38, 41, 44 Abear , Herbert Barry Seal's step-brother, pilot for drug 64 abortion 72 abortion, forced to the forefront by the Vatican 24 Adams John quote 7 Adult consensual behavior (victimless crimes) such a 44, 46, 51, 52, 53, 54, 55, 60, 64, 71, 74, 75, 76, 77, 81 AIDS Exposed book by Jeff Rense 53 Akana , Rowena 59 Albright , Madeleine K. 29 ALBUQUERQUE JOURNAL (The) 29 (the) 30 Annamese macaque endangered species 28 Anteau , Laurie 53 Anti-Defamation League of B'nai B'rith (ADL) 25 APFN 82 APFN'S NEW FAXX-BOXX FEATURE 62 Army National Guard units are working with state and 83, 84, 86, 87, 88 Asiatic black bear endangered species 28 Associated Press 8 Astley , Tom 4 Atouriste , Antoine Army colonel, director of Haiti's anti-nar 5, 1, 2, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 17, 19, 20 Attwood , Harry author historian 80 Australia drought affecting 83% of New South Wales 23 Australia's links to the British crown government campaign to sever 23

B

Bank of England 42 Barton , William authority on Heraldy 77 **BEIJING YOUTH DAILY 21** Bennett , Bob author, pitcher for Modesto A's 50 Bhutto Benazir Prime Minister Pakistan 17 Bible 76 BILL OF RIGHTS Articles I-X 85 Bill of Rights 80, 81, 82 Blair , Mike journalist for Spotlight 86 Blinder , Alan former Princeton professor 27 Vice Chairman at Federal Reserve 28 Book of Revelation 75 boundaries of time and space 38 Boutros-Ghali , Boutros U.N. Secretary General 12 **BRANCH DAVIDIANS 29** Branch Davidians 7 Brandborg , Dianna prospective juror sentenced for contempt 7 Brazil's Central Bank 29 Brever , Stephen G. Judge 11 Bureau of Prisons 14 Bush President 28 CIA agency director 68 Bush's C.I.A. gun running 64

С

capstone 77 Central Imagery Office 30 Central Intelligence Agency 40 Chavez , Cesar deceased United Farm Workers 18 Chen , Kathy journalist 22 Cherokee 17 Cheyenne 16 Chicago 7 trials 41 CHICAGO SUN TIMES (The) 23 China executed prisoners are source of most organ transpl 22 China remained stubbornly above 20% inflation 22 Christopher [A5 on the Committee of 16 (17)] Warren, CFR member 11 CIA 5 CIA or the Mossad—THE drug LORDS 5 Clinton ,Bill 55 , President 27 , Roger 66 President Preacher 23 Clinton's invasion of Haiti 5 clouded leopard endangered species 28 CLUB MEMBERS ATTACHED TO THE BAR ASSOCIA-TION 8 Coat of Arms 74 Cochran , Robert 40 Cold War 17 Coleman , John Dr. 2 Collier , James M. author of Votescam, The Stealing of Ameri 40 Jim 42 Collier and I wrote a book, with my brother, called 44 COLORADO CHRISTIAN NEWS 25 Committee of 16 revealed by Ronn Jackson 46 COMPROMISED book by Terry Reed 6 **COMPUTER VIRUSES 13** computers in most cases are rigged IN ADVANCE for vote counting 41 Constitution 8, 46, 72, 75, 80, 82, 83 Constitution of the United States 9, 71 **Constitution Party** (The) 71 Constitutional Convention 82 Constitutional Law Center 3 Constitutional rights 2 CONTACT 2, 3, 40, 49, 53, 64, 70, 82 contains power of truth 10 significance of logo 76 CONTACT will no longer print information from Ronn Jackson 46 COUNCIL ON FOREIGN RELATIONS (CFR) 11 Council on Foreign Relations has been working since 11 Council on Foreign Relations will be serving on the 11 CP offers the following platform Constitutional Party 71 Crime Bill 55

Crime Bill banning 19 semi-automatic—so-called assa 87 Crossette , Barbara journalist 24 Customs Service 87

D

DAILY NEWS 19, 26 Daily News 25 Dart family 29 debit card system 54 Declaration of Independence 80 Dederick , Robert economist 27 **DEFENSE CONTRACTORS 11** Defense Intelligence Agency 30 **DEFENSE WEEK 30** Delta Force against American citizens 53 democracy definition of according to U.S. War Department 80 Democracy actually means unrestricted majority rule 81 DENVER POST (The) 14, 17, 18, 21 Deutch , John deputy defense secretary 30 Dharma 45 Discovery space shuttle, bright green lasers pulses from 30 **DISREGARD OF OUR NATIONAL INTEREST 73** Dixie Mafia 65 DNA fingerprinting 54 Donahue 44 Donnellv , Terence journalist 29 Donohoe , Edward journalist 11 DON'T GET PUNCHED OUT , pamphlet by Robert Cochran 40 Drug Enforcement Administration 87

E

E Pluribus Unum, 13 letters meaning One from Many 75 eagles have been used as symbols in the nations of 75 Eisenhower U.S. aircraft carrier 24 Ekkers 2 litigations taking place with 8 Election Administration Reports where to obtain copies of 44 electron rigging in Las Vegas is a MISDEMEANOR 42 electromagnetic fields disturbances in 34 Eleventh Amendment 82 new one proposed by Refounding Amendment 82 Emmanuel 57 Epton , Lou 40 Espy , Mike Agriculture Secretary dealings under investig 25 Espy broke the law when he accepted sports tickets, 25 exit polling biggest fraud found 43 EXPRESS 3

F

Fatah revolution, meaning the opening in Arabic of Moammar Gadhafi 31 **FBI 87** Federal Reserve Bank 42 Federalist Papers 83 FEMA 78 Congress has no jurisdiction over 74 FEMA POLICE SHOULDER PATCH 73 Ferguson , Debbie 69 Finley , Bruce journalist 14 Florence, Colo. prison complex 14 Folev , Thomas Speaker of House CFR member 11 Foster , Vince 69 FREEWAY UNIVERSITY NEWS REPORT 73 Frev , Gerhard leader of the People's Union 21 Fugitive Slave Act in the 1850s 7 Fujimori , Alberto President of Peru 29 Furukawa , Stacy 13

G

Gadhafi , Moammar 30 GATT 55 Gephardt , House Majority Leader CFR member 11 German People's Union ultranationalist 21 Gilinsky , Beth Jewish Action Alliance quote 26 Gilmore , Janet journalist 25 Ginsburg

, Ruth CFR member 12 God's Laws 24 God's Plan 47 Gore , Al Vice President 13 GORILLAS IN THE MIST movie 14 Great Architect of the Universe 77 Great Seal 76 (The) 78 Great Seal of the United States 78 (The) symbology of 74 Green 47 , George 46 Green Revolutionary Army 31 Greenpeace environmental group 20 Greenspan 27 , Alan Federal Reserve Chairman 27 Greenspan, a Republican appointee 27 Gritz 47 Gritz, whom you all remember was strongly supported 46

H

HAITI AND HIGH CRIMES 73 Haiti is a recognized drug transshipment point 5 Hamilton , David P. journalist 20 Hand , Floyd Sioux medicine man 16 handler 64 Harris .Kevin 10 Hatian circumstance revolves around drugs 4 Hatonn 1, 4, 75 Commander 46, 53, 56 HAWAII SOVEREIGNTY UPDATE 59 Hawaiian monarchy was a viable political structure 60 Hawaiian sovereignty 60 Hawaii's sovereignty project 10 Heider , Dave owner of rare white buffalo calf 16 Herman , Russell 47 Higuchi , Susan 29 Hitler's Germany 51 Hulet , Craig B. author, political analysy 53 , Craig information to order audio cassette intervie 55

I

Illuminati took over most of Masonry at the time of 77 IMF rules, Third World nations are restricted to an 27 Immigration and Naturalization Service 87 Internal Revenue Service elimination of 72 International Gorilla Conservation Program 14 International Monetary Fund , (IMF) 12 Israeli contract firms have been hired to train the 5

J

JACKSON , Ronn request from 9 Jackson Justice 74 , Ronn 1, 46, 47, 78 JAPANESE PLEDGE 20 Japan's military brothels foreign women forced to serve in 20 Japan's unemployment rate hit a seven-year high 19 Jefferson , Thomas 57 Jesus (Eshoo in Aramaic) 75 Jewish Action Alliance 26 Jewish Post 84 JEWS CONDEMN ADL by Rick Martin 25 JOHNSON CITY PRESS 27, 29 (The) 22 Johnston , David journalist 24 Jones , David of Aubrey G. Lanston & Co 28 Judeo-Christian Morality 50

K

K means kosher in food tax symbology 84 Kaha'i Topalinski , John R. teacher 61 Kali, who is Geophysicist Commander Soltec's scribe 56 Kalpers , Jose 14 Kanther , Manfred Interior Minister Germany 21 Karr , Albert journalist 28 KEEP YOUR EYES OPEN AS Earth Changes Accelerate by Soltec 34 King , Rodney attorneys present bill to city of Los Angel

25

King George 6 King James Version of the Bible has translated this 75 Kissinger , Henry 27 Koresh , David 30 KOSHER FOOD TAX by Edward Tear 83 Kusmenko , Mika U.N.'s Russian translation chief 26

L

L.A. Daily News 23 Lachica , Eduardo journalist 28 Lakota 51 Larry King 44 Las Vegas Review-Journal 6 Lasserder . Dan 65 Laws of God 47 Lindemann , Michael UFO expert 55 Lippman , Thomas W. journalist 17 Los Angeles is a mass of fault lines 36 **LOSANGELESTIMES** (The) 10

M

Majestic 12 (MJ-12) 1 Malthusian ideologues is the direct continuation of 27 Manifest Destiny 51, 61 Martin , Rick 9, 48 Martino , Renato Archbishop Holy See's observer to U.N. 13 Matthew 7 15 You will know them by their fruits. 46 **McDaniels** Charlie 31 Mena Airport, in Mena, AR. 66 MILITIA OF MONTANA INTEL REPORT 63 mishpucka 47 Mitchell , Seante Majority Leader CFR member 11 MODESTOBEE 31 (The) 17, 20, 30 Modesto Bee (The) 50 MONTREAL GAZETTE

(The) 19 MORE ON NEARBY SOVIET ARMAMENTS 73 MORE ON THE REFOUNDING AMENDMENT by Don Fotheringham 82 Mossad 5 Mossad element was in full command in Panama and is 5 Mount Whitney command ship 24 mountain gorillas only 600 remain on earth 14 Mullins , Eustace 2 Murayama , Tomiichi Japanese Prime Minister 20

N

NAFTA 55 Narragansetts 52 National Identification Registry 55 national identification system 54 National Security Agency 30 Naval Intelligence (O.N.I.) 64 Naylor , Robert journalist 19 **NEW CAPITAL OFFENSES 19** new death penalty crimes it consists of 55 New World Order 12, 46, 78 NEW YORK TIMES 25 New York Times (The) 23, 24 (the) 24 Noah , Timothy journalist 20 Nora's Research Corner Extra 74 Noriega , Manuel General 64 Noriega of Panama 5 North Oliver Marine Lt. Col. 68 North American Plate 36 interior areas shaking 34 NUCLEAR TECHNOLOGY 20 nuclear blackmail fears of 15 nuclear materials seizures of in Germany 15

0

O'Conner , Sandra Day CFR member 12 OREGONIAN (the) 30 ORLANDO SENTINEL , (The) 29 (The) 13, 14, 15, 16, 22 Osiris as a god of the dead in Egypt 77 Our Republic book by Harry Attwood quote 80

P

Pacific Plate 35 major volcanic eruptions 39 pagan language 51 Pakistan already has a nuclear bomb 18 Penn , William 6 Pepper , Claude 42 Pepper is the father of Social Security 42 Perkins , Joseph quote of commentary on Cairo population con 26 Perot actually won last presidential election 45 Peshitta (Holy Bible) from Aramaic by George Lamsa 75 Peterson , Chuck attorney for Randy Weaver 10 Phoenix Institute attacks on 2 PHOENIX LIBERATOR (The) 49 Pilgrims 52 Planet Earth a living organism 37 Platt , Daniel journalist 26 Pledge of Allegiance 80 POLICE FEDERAL PROTECTIVE 78 Posner 44 **POWELLVALLEY** (The) 31 power outages unexplained 34 Prince Kuhio elected to Congress 59 Prohibition in the 1920s 7

R

Reagan , President 28 , Ronald President 14 Refounding Amendment 82 (The) 82 Reno 44

, Janet 42 , Janet Attorney General 25 , Janet Murder 40 **RENO TARGETS THOSE WHO MAY 86** Rense , Jeff 53 , Jeff letter to Rick Martin of CONTACT 53 republic a system of checks and balances 80 Reverse Seal on the dollar bill 77 **REVIEW** volumes 4 Right to Bear Arms (The) 6 right to keep and bear arms 72 Robinson , Arthur Dr. 2 Roden , Amo Bishop 30 Rodriquez , Arturo United Farm Workers President 18 Roth , Terence journalist 20 Royal Arch , Masonic degree 77 Rubin , James, journalist 27 Russbacher 47 Russbacher, the super spy 46 Russell , Walter Dr. 4 Russia will import six million metric tons of grain 18 Russo , Aaron 74 Rwanda's deadly civil war 14

S

S.A.C. [Strategic Air Command] 68 sacred hoop of life 50 Sami , Mariam journalist 30 San Andreas Fault 35 SANTA BARBARA NEWS-PRESS 18 Sapsford , Jathon journalist 19 Scarborough , Scott and Karen framed by government snitch 7 Schoof , Renee journalist 22 Schumer , Charles Representative New York 87 SCIENCE magazine 18 Seal , Barry CIA drug smuggling pilot 64

Seares , George H. introduction of 1 Sentor , Harvey Rabbi 84 Seven Sisters of the Pleiades Constellation 56 Shanker , Thom journalist 15 shield, or escutcheon 74 Sicangu Lakota (history calls me a Sioux 50 Simpson , O.J. 4, 8 Smaltz, , Donald L.A. lawyer 24 Smith , Margaret Chase former Senator from Maine 81 , R. Jeffrey journalist 17 Sodom & Gomorrah 57 Solomon's Seal representation of 76 Soltec , Toniose 34, 38 Source (the) returning to 38 Span , Jerry and Darlene convicted of interfering with Fe 7 SPOKESMAN-REVIEW 10 SPOTLIGHT 1, 86, 87 Stich , Rodney 55 Stipp David 23 Strecker , Robert Dr. 55 Suprynowicz Vin journalist 6 SUSTAINED CULTURE 60 Swint , Allen Arkansas state policeman 65 Roger Clinton's best friend and protector 66 Swinton , John journalist 49

Т

Tear

, Edward journalist 83 THE CONSTITUTION PARTY 71 THE MISSING 13th AMENDMENT 73 THE NEWS DESK by Ed Cleary 23 by Rick Martin 10 THE PIPELINE 64 The Brotherhood book by Stephen Knight 77 The Religious Right The assault on Tolerance and Pluralism in America ADL report 25 thirteen tribes of Israel 76 Thompson , Charles Secretary of Congress made original drawin 76 , Linda 53, 55 **TOBACCO FARMERS 31** tobacco farmers Washington's efforts to put out of business 31 Trial by Jury require three separate amendments—the 6 Twigg-Smith , Thirston journalist 59 TWINKLE, TWINKLE, LITTLE STAR by Kali 56 Tyson , Don Chicken King 65

U

U stands for Union of Orthodox Jewish Congregations 84 U.S. LEADS IN WORLD MARKETS 28 U.S. Border Patrol track down illegal immigrants by 18 U.S. Census Bureau 13 U.S. Constitution 32 Uncle Sam 14 **UNITED STATES POLICE 74** United Farm Workers is enjoying swelling membership 18 United Nations population conference in Cairo 26 United States and the U.N. sanctions against Libya 30 Universe law of the 37 University of Science and Philosophy 4

V

VALLEJO TIMES-HERALD 11 Vatican 12 Vincent , Don L.A. Deputy City Attorney 25 vote in MUCH OF AMERICA is rigged 41 VOTESCAM book by Jim Collier 40 VOTESCAM, THE STEALING OF AMERICA 40

W

Wakan Tanka (the Creator) 51 Waldman , Peter journalist 12, 26 WALL STREET JOURNAL (The) 12, 18, 19, 20, 22, 23, 26, 28, 29 (the) 21 Wallace , Henry A. former Vice President 77 Wampanoags 52 WASHINGTON POST (The) 17 Washington Times 5 Wattenburg , Bill physicist 18 Wean , Gary 25 Weaver , Randy 10 Weaver's wife, Vicki, and son, Sam shot and killed during standoff 10 WHAT IS A REPUBLIC? 80 WHITE BUFFALO birth of, rare 16 Wilcox , Robert Hawaiian leader 59 Wilson , Tracy journalist 10 Wines , Michael jounalist 23 Wirth , Timothy Undersecretary of State 12 Wittig , Sue Chippewa Indian 17 WOMEN SPIES 11 World Trade Center bombing 15

Y

Young , Edwin M. Dr. Editor -In-Chief CONTACT 10

Z

ZAPATA OIL owned by Bush family 69 Zhirinovsky , Vladimir Russian ultranationalist 21